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PART 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Foreword by the Minister of Housing

The financial year 2005/06 has been the most exciting and yet severely
challenging in housing. We implemented the Breaking New Ground strat-
egy in all the provinces and received support from the banks in this regard.
We also received tremendous support from community and non-govern-
mental organisations and the private sector all of whom signed the Social
Contract for the acceleration of the delivery of houses. But as implementa-
tion was the key focus significant challenges emerged. We had to deal with
these in a manner that enabled us to keep focus on the main objective of
the strategy to accelerate delivery whilst extracting lessons at the same
time.

From this report the public will be able to glean the kind of activities that
we had to be involved in to make certain that implementation indeed took
place and that we mobilised all the necessary stakeholders for the pur-
pose. |, therefore, would like to express gratitude to all the stakeholders
for the manner in which they took part in implementation. Thus making it
possible for us to report progress on our activities.

As per our constitution, housing is a right to be enjoyed by all. This then
places an obligation on all of us to do what we can to make it possible
for all South Africans to have a decent, secure and comfortable home.
This consideration is also important if looked against the need to grow our
economy. For housing generates income and employment and plays an
important role in the growth of the economy.

Housing returns the dignity of people and enables them to fully play a part
in community and political activities.

.

Lindiwe Sisulu, MP
Minister of Housing

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2005-2006
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THE MINISTER OF HOUSING

ER OF HOUSING, | HAVE THE HONOUR OF

SUBMITTING THE 2005/06 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE NATIONAL
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING, IN TERMS OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE

MANAGEMENT ACT, 1999

Mr Ithumeleng Kotsoane,
Director-General,
Department of Housing

1.2 Introduction by the Director-General and
submission of the annual report to the ex-
ecutive authority

The Comprehensive Plan for the Development of Sustainable Human Set-
tlements remains the anchor of all our programmes and initiatives. The
implementation of the Comprehensive Plan demands a new paradigm of
values, attitudes, and spirit among all stakeholders and functionaries as we
all respond to the undeniable need to fast-track the delivery of sustainable
human settlements in the context of current socio-economic and demogra-
phic reality in the country.

Through the Comprehensive Plan for the Development of Sustainable Hu-
man Settlements, the Department continues to seek more responsive and
effective delivery arrangements. The vision of the Department to promote
the achievement of a non-racial, integrated society through the develop-
ment of sustainable human settlements and quality housing remains firmly
entrenched and pursuant of the goals to:

» accelerate the delivery of housing as a key strategy for poverty alle-
viation;

» utilise the provision of housing as a major job creation strategy;

» ensure that property can be accessed by all as an asset for wealth
creation and empowerment;

* leverage growth in the economy;

» combat crime, promote social cohesion and improve the quality of life of
the poor;

» support the functioning of the entire single residential property market
to reduce the duality within the sector by breaking the barriers between
the first economy residential property boom and the second economy
slump; and

» utilise housing as an instrument for the development of sustainable
human settlements in support of spatial restructuring.

We are firm in our conviction that the Comprehensive Plan continues to
represent a holistic approach to housing and human settlements develop-
ment.

Initiatives embarked upon in line with the Comprehensive Plan include:

» The financial modeling of the Plan to inform decisions around funding
and programming of delivery targets.



houses * security * comfort * BREAKING NEW GROUND IN HOUSING DELIVERY

» Considerable and varied progress was realised on Pilot projects in all
nine Provinces, aimed at fast-tracking delivery and guiding further policy
development through lessons learnt.

» Consistent with the need to achieve expeditious delivery, investigations
into the delivery value chain yielded insights into possible optimal delivery
arrangements and interventions to transcend delivery bottlenecks.

» Enhancements to the organisational structure that are at an advanced
stage and pending approval by the Executing Authority.

The formation and maintenance of strategic alliances, together with both
national and international partnerships, remains one of the cornerstones of
success in achieving our human settlements objectives.

Engagements with the key housing sectors continued nationally and re-
sulted in a number of commitments to form partnerships to address the
housing backlog and build sustainable settlements that are so vital to sup-
port a vibrant economy. This engagement process has, inter alia, resulted
in the following:

* Following the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding between the
Department and major South African banks through which the banks
pledged R42 billion to be released to the low-income housing market by
2008, several operational and interpretation considerations had to be
attended that threatened progress.

* Apartnership with non-governmental organisations, as well as develop-
ers and the construction industry was bolstered through the signing of
the Social Contract for Rapid Housing Delivery. Thus providing a struc-
tured and coherent platform for working with partners.

* A National Municipal Housing Indaba was convened to serve as an
Intergovernmental platform to address key challenges affecting Housing
delivery and to, secure consensus across government on priorities for
achieving the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.

On the international front we continued pursuing the objectives of the
African Ministers’ Conference on Housing and Urban Development (AM-
CHUD), which serves to strengthen regional relationships between African
countries, the African Union and the UN in the area of human settlement
development.

The strategic “south/south” alliance between India, South Africa and Brazil
continues to grow through a series of exchanges engagements.

During the year under review, housing delivery continued unabated and
by 31 March 2006 the number of houses completed or under construction
since 1994 stood at 2 081 694, with 2 848 160 subsidies approved.

While significant progress has been made, the challenges in the housing
sector remain daunting. These include the growth in housing backlogs,
limited resources and capacity in all three spheres of government, supply
constraints in the construction industry, and challenges of transformation,
alignment and coordination. The sector is also faced with the imminent
challenge posed by mega Projects such as those related to 2010 Soccer
World Cup, Gautrain and other infrastructure investments. In this regard

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2005-2006
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the sector must find creative ways to ensure growth in delivery amidst po-
tential competition for resources with these mega projects.

Furthermore, the Housing sector must address itself to challenges of in-
creasing urbanisation and migration in a robust manner that transcends
territorial/regional preferences. The improvement of alignment between
planning tools and systems requires careful and focused collaborative ef-
fort by all organs of the state. Responding to land constraints for housing
development (in the context of spatial restructuring and integration) calls
for greater emphasis in collaboration.

Many of my colleagues within government and partners in the Housing sec-
tor are both challenged and invigorated by the enormity of the task before
us all — the task of housing the nation. | also acknowledge the stewardship
and dedication of my predecessors who have all steered the department
and the sector to where we are able to catch a glimpse of the new dawn
for Housing.

We are therefore confident in submitting this annual report outlining the
performance of the National Department of Housing for the 2005/2006 fi-
nancial year.

I W KOTSOANE
DIRECTOR-GENERAL
DATE: 31 MAY 2006
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1.3 Information on the Ministry

During the period under review the Minister sought to accelerate Housing
delivery and access to housing finance. To this end the Minister brought
the banking Association of South Africa as a partner in housing delivery.
This resulted in the social contract and a pledge by the banking sector
to infuse funding for housing development. The Social contract marked a
strategic shift in line with the comprehensive plan on sustainable human
settlements.

The Minister attended and delivered papers to the following conferences:
e 20" Session of the Governing Council of UN-Habitat, Kenya;

o Development Forum hosted by the Advisory Board for Developmental
Cooperation, Ireland;

e CSD 13, New York; and
e UN-Habitat and UN Governing Council, New York.

During the period under review the Minister undertook the following study
tours abroad:

o Celebrations of World Habitat Day, Singapore, as well as an official visit
to Singapore.

In addition to the international engagements mentioned above and the Min-
ister’s parliamentary activities that include the presentations on the Budget
Vote debates to both the National Assembly and the National Council of
Provinces (NCOP) which took place on 17 and 19 May 2005 respectively
and the participation and presentations in various media briefings and an-
swering of parliamentary questions, the Minister’s activities during the year
under review included the following key presentations and speeches de-
livered at:

e the occasion of the 20" Session of the Governing Council of the United
Nations Human Settlements Programme.

e the 13" Session of the United Nations Commission on Sustainable De-
velopment in New York as Chairperson of the African Ministerial Con-
ference on Housing and Urban Development (AMCHUD).

e the 13" Session of the United Nations Commission on Sustainable De-
velopment on “Meeting the Millennium Development Goals”.

e the opening of the National Forum of Homeless People.
o the opening of the International Housing Research Seminar.
e the Housing Summit of the Gauteng Provincial Department of Housing.

e the Financial Sector Transformation Conference by the Financial Sector
Campaign Coalition.

e the occasion of handing over of keys to the beneficiaries of the Women
Partnership Build.

o the opening of the IBSA workshop on mobilising resources for human
settlements in middle income countries.

e the opening of the XXXIIl IAHS World Congress on Housing.

e the Conference for the Development of Ireland’s White Paper on
development Cooperation.

e the occasion of the Holcim Awards for Sustainability in Construction.

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2005-2006

Mr Mark Hildebrand (Programme
Manager - Cities Alliance),

Ms Lindiwe Sisulu (Minister of Housing),
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Alliance MOU on 24 January 2006 in
Pretoria
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e the Annual Conference of the Black Management Forum.

e the awards ceremony of the National Homebuilders Registration Council
(NHBRC).

e the opening of the National Municipal Housing Indaba.

e the Imbizo of the National Council of Provinces in Limpopo.

e Cape Talk’s 8" birthday celebration and house build initiative.

e the ceremony to launch the Olievenhoutbosch Housing Project.
e the ceremony to launch the Solomon Mahlangu Housing Project.

In addition to the above, the Minister paid several site visits nationally to
projects that have been implemented through the current housing pro-
gramme since 1994 and Presidential Imbizos in the various provinces.
During these visits, she witnessed the experiences of beneficiaries of the
programme relating to the projects that were successfully implemented
and where communities expressed appreciation of the impact this had on
their lives. She also shared experiences with those communities within the
areas where these projects were implemented who are awaiting their turn
to benefit from the programmes, as well as those who are assisting govern-
ment themselves in finding their own housing solutions.

She received first hand information and testimony of the communities who
experienced problems of receiving houses that were built to substandard
levels due in some cases to, unscrupulous partners who acted in some
cases in collusion with and/or through lapses by government officials, re-
sulting in many cases in the building of houses that did not meet the mini-
mum norms and standards. In some instances cases are being pursued
through the Task Teams investigating corruption and mal-administration in
the implementation of the housing programme. These experiences provi-
ded the Minister with insight on her role in providing instructions for correc-
tive and pro-active policy interventions to deal with some of the matters
that were raised.

Imbizos were held in the following provinces:

e President’s Imbizo at Sedibeng Municipality

e President’'s Imbizo at Khayelitsha

e Deputy President’s Imbizo at Metsweding District Municipality.

The following Institutions report to the Minister of Housing:
e Servcon Housing Solutions (Pty) Ltd

¢ National Urban Reconstruction and Housing Agency

¢ National Housing Finance Corporation

e Social Housing Foundation

¢ National Home Builders Registration Council

e Thubelisha Homes

e Rural Housing Loan Fund

e People’s Housing Partnership Trust
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1.4 Legislative and other mandates

Vision: A Nation housed in sustainable human settlement with access to
socio economic infrastructure.

Mission: To establish and facilitate a sustainable process that provides eqg-
uitable access to adequate housing for all within the context of affordability
of housing and services and access to social amenities and economic op-
portunities.

Intermsofsection26 ofthe Constitutioneveryonehastherighttohaveaccessto
adequate housing (Section26(1)). The state musttake reasonable legislative
and othermeasures, withinits available resources, toachieve the progressive
realisation of this right (Section 26(2)). The legislation that the Department
of Housing has promulgated and implemented falls squarely within this
Constitutional imperative.

i) The Housing Act, 1997 (Act No. 107 of 1997)
Through its legislation, existing and future, and the Housing Code, the
Department of Housing is carrying out its legislative imperative as set out
in the Housing Act, 1997. Section 2 of the HousingAct, 1997 (ActNo. 107
of 1997) compels all three spheres of government to give priority to the
needs of the poor in respect of housing development (section 2(1) (a)).
In addition all 3 spheres of government must ensure that housing deve-
lopment:
(i) provides as wide a choice of housing and tenure options
as is reasonably possible;
(i) is economically, fiscally, socially and financially affordable
and sustainable;
(iii) is based on integrated development planning; and
(iv) is administered in a transparent, accountable and
equitable manner, and upholds the practice of good governance
(Section 2(1) (c)).

ii) Prevention of lllegal Eviction from and Unlawful Occupation of

Land Act (1998)

The Prevention of lllegal Eviction from and Unlawful Occupation of
Land Act was promulgated in 1998. The Act repeals the Prevention
of lllegal Squatting Act no. 52 of 1951 and makes provision for a fair
and equitable process to be followed when evicting people, who have
unlawfully invaded land, from their homes. The Act also makes it an
offence to evict without following the due process of law.

iii) The Housing Consumers Protection Measures Act of 1998
The Act provides for the establishment of a statutory body for homebuil-
ders. The National Home Builders Registration Council registers builders
engaged in certain categories of house construction and regulates the
home building industry by formulating and enforcing a code of conduct.
The implementation of the Act is monitored continuously.
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iv) The Rental Housing Act of 1999

This Act repeals the Rent Control Act of 1976 and defines Government’s
responsibility in respect of rental housing property. It creates mechanisms
to promote the provision of rental housing and the proper functioning
of the rental housing market. To facilitate sound relations between
tenants and landlords, it lays down general requirements for leases and
principles for conflict resolution in the rental-housing sector. It also makes
provision for the establishment of Rental Housing Tribunals and defines
the functions, powers and duties of such Tribunals. Provincial housing
departments have a duty to establish Rental Housing Tribunals.

v) Home Loan and Mortgage Disclosure Act of 2000
The Act provides for the establishment of the Office of Disclosure and
the monitoring of financial institutions serving the housing credit needs
of communities. It requires financial institutions to disclose information
to enable it to identify possible discriminatory lending patterns. The act
came into operation during 2003.

vi) Disestablishment of South African Trust Limited Act, 2002
(Act 26 of 2002)
The winding up of the South African Housing Trust and the transfer of
the functions relating to financial obligations were completed by the be-
ginning of 2003 in terms of the of Act 26 of 2002: Disestablishment of
South African Trust Limited Act, 2002.

r ¥ e ¥

SERVCON

reene rerens  9erveon Housing Solutions is a private company es-
tablished as a product of the Record of Understanding between govern-
ment and financial institutions or lenders where lenders pledged to re-enter
the low income housing market. Servcon was established in terms of the
Company’s Act of 1973 and was mandated to provide exclusive manage-
ment services with respect to the designated or ring-fenced portfolio com-
prising 33 306 Properties in Possession (PIP’s) and Non-Performing Loans
(NPL’s) with a value of R1, 277 billion, for a period of 8 years from 1 April
1998 to 31 March 2006. It is expected that the remaining properties will be
finalised and disposed of before the end of the first half of the next financial
year.

JTh“be“Sh" Thubelisha Homes on the other hand is a section 21

company, established as a “special purpose vehicle to facilitate the acquisi-
tion of rightsizing housing stock and the disposal of these houses
to Servcon clients”.

NATIONAL HOME BUILDERS

REGISTRATION COUNCIL The National Home Builders Registration Council is
a public entity established in terms of the Housing Consumer Protection
Measures Act of 1998 has been providing an exclusive regulatory function
in the home building environment. It was established in November 1998
with the mandate to protect potential housing consumers from unscrupu-
lous homebuilders. It has since been striving to regulate and provide better
services to the consumers through registration of homebuilders and enrol-
ment of homes.



There are three financial institutions that provide
housing finance solutions

These are: National Housing Finance Corporation (NHFC), National Urban
Reconstruction Housing Agency (NURCHA) and Rural Home Loan Fund
(RHLF). It is envisaged that these institutions will still provide these serv-
ices in the new housing plan.

The National Housing Finance Corporation (NHFC)
was established as a result of a Cabinet decision in May 1996, as envis-
aged in the White Paper on Housing, which was approved by Cabinet on 7
December 1994. NHFC was established to search for new and better ways
to mobilise finance for housing, from sources outside the state, in partner-
ship with the broadest range of organisations.

RET oY RUERON
HOUSING AGENCY Nurcha was established as a Section 21 Company and

as an RDP Presidential Lead Project in 1995 by agreement between the
South African Government and the Open Society Institute of New York.
The primary function of Nurcha is to help release finance for low cost hous-
ing from financial institutions. Nurcha’s main activity is to offer guarantees
to banks to encourage them to make bridging finance loans available to
developers in cases where banks are not prepared to approve such loans
without additional security, and thus facilitate the flow of finance from finan-
cial institutions into low-income housing development.

RHLF:

RURAL HOUSING HOUSING |

LOAN “mn’ Rural Housing Loan Fund is a section 21 company
established to provide incremental loans to rural communities for housing
purposes.

Social Housing Foundation is a section 21 company
established to broadly develop and build capacity for social housing; to
encourage networking both locally and internationally by bringing various
players together in a range of different forums, to promote information and
skills exchanges and cooperation and to develop a policy framework for
social housing.

ot

Eummm People’s Housing Partnership Trust (PHPT) was es-
tablished in 1997, to implement a capacity building programme to support
the People’s Housing Process. The main objective of the programme is to
develop capacity at all levels of government, Non-Governmental Organisa-
tions (NGOs), Community Based Organisations (CBO’s) and communities
to support the People’s Housing Process.
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. PART 2: PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

2.1 Voted funds

2.2 Aim of the vote

The aim of the Department of Housing is to determine, finance, promote,
co-ordinate, communicate and monitor the implementation of policy for
housing and human settlements.

2.3 Summary of programmes

The activities of the Department of Housing are organised in the following
six programmes:

Programme 1: Administration

Programme 2: Housing Policy Planning and Research
Programme 3: Housing Programme Management
Programme 4: Housing Sector Performance
Programme 5: Housing Equity

Programme 6: Housing Development Funding

2.4 Overview of the service delivery
environment for 2005/06

2.4.1 The economic environment

South Africa’s economy proved fairly resilient to the oil price shock during
2005 and has probably grown at its highest level in decades. The year
2005 was characterised by surging oil prices often impacted upon by the
escalating conflicts in the Middle East, a series of natural disasters and
monetary policy tightening across the globe in response to higher infla-
tion. Interest rates in several major economies of the world were increased
during 2005 in response to the higher inflationary pressures. In the US,
interest rates increased to 4,25% in December from 1,00% in mid-2004,
whereas the European Central Bank also lifted rates for the first time in
over two years — by 25 basis points to 2,25%.

The state of the economy

Economic growth

The South African economy grew by 5%. As a result of better economic
performance and efficiency in tax collection, the fiscal revenue collected for
government programmes increased from R354, 9 billion in 2004/05 to R411,
1 billion in 2005/06 and the budget allocation for housing programmes from
R5, 2 billion in 2005/6 to R6,9 billion in the 2006/07 financial year. However,
other economic indicators reveal that economic performance still does not



houses * security * comfort * BREAKING NEW GROUND IN HOUSING DELIVERY

adequately accommodate the majority of the South African population who
are unemployed and underdeveloped.

Oil and petrol prices

The oil price continued an upward trend from a monthly average of $40.54
a barrel in December 2004 to $62.86 in March 2006. During the second
quarter 2005, the oil price traded above $70.00 per barrel due to distur-
bances in the oil supply. In most cases the Rand could not cushion the im-
pact of high oil prices on petrol, as a result, the petrol price increased from
R4.20 in February 2005 to highest level of R6.03 in October 2005 and then
declined to R5.39 per litre in March 2006. Increasing petrol price affected
inflation (rate of price increase) including that of building material, thereby
forcing the prices of newly built houses upward. The subsidy adjustment
will have to respond annually to increasing inflation to ensure that the qual-
ity of houses remains the same. This reduces the value of already limited
resources to deal with the housing backlog. This also impacted negatively
on the profit margin of the construction companies, forcing them out of the
government subsidies housing market.

Current trends in inflation

The trend of the overall inflation increased from 2,6% in February 2005 to
4,4% in September of the same year and decline to 3,4% in March 2006.
The Consumer Price Index (CPIX) increased from 3,1% in February to
4,8% in August and declined to 3.8% in March 2006. Although inflation
declined slightly during the third and the fourth quarter of 2005/06 financial
year, it is expected to increase again due to the high oil price. The most
worrying factor with inflation is the strong surge of the Producer Price Index
(PPI) during 2005/2006 financial year, which has a lagging influence on
both the CPI and the CPIX. Between February 2005 and March 2006, PPI
increased from 1,2% to 5,5%.

By definition, inflation is the rate at which prices increase. During the
2005/06 financial year, inflation continued to increase thereby eroding the
value of disposable income of the buyers and forcing them to channel high
percentages of their expenditure on other necessities like food rather than
luxury items. Increasing inflation dampened the chances for the Reserve
bank to reduce interest rates. Moreover, it impacted negatively on the abil-
ity to afford home loans, thereby limiting the number of those who can
afford home loans. From a housing supply point of view, increasing in-
flation, especially producer price inflation is an indication that the cost of
building a house is accelerating, thereby lowering the profit margin of the
construction companies which in turn will require the subsidy amount to be
adjusted even faster than before otherwise the quality of those houses will
be compromised.

Interest rates movements

In the 2005/06 financial year the Reserve Bank reduced the repo rate by
50 basis points in April 2005 to 7% and the commercial banks followed
suite by reducing mortgage lending rates by the same margin to 10,5%
(SARB Quarterly Bulletin, 2006a). Declining interest rate since 2002 have
substantially reduced the cost of borrowing including that for affordable
housing in the bond market. However, escalating house prices in the bond
market have also rendered housing unaffordable for many South Africans
in the low to middle income level partly due to low interest rates. What is
observed is that the houses that people can afford in the middle-income

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2005-2006
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levels are becoming very small due to high prices emanating from high
demand. Should the market fail to respond to high demand by increasing
the supply of housing, more South Africans will be without housing, thereby
forcing government to reshape its policy on assistance.

Household debt as a percentage of disposable income

According to the press statements during May 2006, economists estimate
the ratio of household debt burden to disposable income is 65,5%, up from
49,1 percent in the last quarter of 2002. They predicted that this will in-
crease to more than 70% over the next two years. This situation suggests
that consumers might find themselves with unsustainable debt levels,
which in the end may cause unintended undesirable effects to the financial
markets and, will require government intervention.

Unemployment

According to Stats SA’'s Labour Force Survey (2005), 658 000 jobs were
created between September 2004 and September 2005. The growth in
the numbers of those unemployed left the unemployment rate virtually un-
changed at 26,7% in September 2005, compared to 26,2% in September
2004. High unemployment is an indication that many people are still not
participating in the economy and remain trapped in poverty. This poses
immense challenges to government at all levels of service delivery. For
housing specifically, young adults who cannot find employment at the mo-
ment will rely on government for housing assistance. Consequently the
backlog as depicted by escalating informal settlements which defines the
housing demand remains ever escalating. Coupled with the higher levels
of price escalations in the building material input costs and house prices,
the dilemma for housing delivery is that amongst those that are partici-
pating in the economy, the majority cannot afford to provide housing for
themselves.

As part of the initiatives to reduce unemployment, National Department
of Housing has initiated and approved about 47 national housing subsi-
dy scheme projects from different provinces excluding the Western and
the Eastern Cape to be part of EPWP. The program generated about
2,316 000 job opportunities. In terms of employment, a total of 705 000
youths, 590 000 women and 12 000 disabled persons were employed
through the program. Kwazulu-Natal recorded the highest number of
projects approved and also had high percentages for employment gener-
ated as compared to other provinces.

Future prospects

Confidence indices, which indicate the direction the economy will take in
the near future, were still strong. The consumer confidence index recorded
+21 points in the first quarter of 2006 from +20 points in the fourth quarter
of 2005. This indicates that consumers remained confident about the fu-
ture of the economy. The business confidence index which is a composite
index that tracks the performance of 13 key indicators, increased from 85
points in the fourth quarter of 2005 to 86 points in the first quarter of 2006.
This means that 86% of the business executives participating in the opinion
surveys view business conditions positively as compared to 82% of the first
quarter of 2005. Again, this state of affairs augers well for housing particu-
larly the prospects of job creation which could bring some relief to some of
the beneficiaries of the low to medium income categories.



houses * security * comfort * BREAKING NEW GROUND IN HOUSING DELIVERY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2005-2006

17

The state of the building and construcion industry

Building cost

The building cost index has recorded a decrease of 12.3 % from 17.3%
in the fourth quarter of 2005 to 5% in the first quarter of 2006. When the
building cost index decreases, it means that the contractor’s profit margins
are increasing. On a year on year basis, the building cost index recorded a
decrease of 15,2 % from 20.2% in the first quarter of 2005 to 5% in the first
quarter of 2006. This indicates that contractors have experienced a period
of high profit margins.

The Haylett Formula, on a year on year basis, has recorded a decrease of
1.6% from 7.4% in the first quarter of the previous year to 5.8 % for 2006.
The Haylett formula indices represent composite indices of input costs in
the building process which includes labour, materials, plant and fuel. The
BER also expects that the rate of growth of the Haylett Formula will accel-
erate from the current 5.8% to 8.0% by the end of the year with the annual
percentage change anticipated to increase to an average of 6.9% during
2006.

Cement sales

The level of building activity is indicated by the demand for cement in the
industry. The Cement and Concrete Institute provides statistical informa-
tion on cement sales in South Africa. According to the institute during 2005
regional growth of 11.6 % was recorded as compared to a growth of 15.0
for 2004. The regional growth resulted in regional sales amounting to
11 934 825 tons for the period ending December 2005.

Although buoyant conditions have characterised the construction sector
for the year of 2005, a 1% decrease in the percentage change has been
experienced by the residential building sector from 7,2% in the third quarter
of 2005 to 6,2 % in the fourth quarter, although the percentage is high as
compared to that of the first quarter which recorded -3,1 %. This is different
from the non-residential building and construction work which saw a posi-
tive performance from 1,6 %, the third quarter, 2005 to 6,3% fourth quarter
of 2005 and 0,4% for the third quarter of 2005 to 10,2% fourth quarter of
2005 respectively as indicated on the graph below.

House price index

House prices have increased significantly in real terms over the last five
years with the highest growth recorded in the first quarter of 2003 as shown
in graph 9 below. However, there has been a noticeable real decline in
property price growth since the first quarter of 2005. The declining trend in
average year-on-year house price growth of 7,9% during the first quarter of
2004, 4,8% in first quarter of 2005 and 3% during the first quarter of 2006
contrasts sharply with the 13,5% recorded for the first quarter of 2003.

The supply of affordable housing

The housing boom led to the construction of more, higher value units rel-
ative to the construction activity in the affordable segment. The propor-
tion of affordable housing units constructed from the total enrolments of
NHBRC declined from 63% in 2000 to 29.8% in 2004 driven by the pros-
pects of higher profit margins for developers as well as the excess de-
mand for residential housing for households in the higher income brackets.
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The MoU signed between the four big banks and the Minister of Housing,
pledges R42 billion by 31 December 2008 as end user finance for those
who earn an income of between R1 500 and R7 500 per month. This in-
come range is to be adjusted with the CPIX index on an annual basis.
The average annual inflation rate in 2005, as calculated by using the CPIX
index, is 3.7% (Statistics South Africa: 2006). If this rate is applied to the
initial income bands, it changes to R1 556 and R7 778. At the current prime
rate of 10,5% the maximum mortgage that a person in this income band
will qualify for, before cost financing, thus changes to R194 766 from R187
804. In order to distribute the R42 billion, housing stock in this price range
needs to be available for purchase. To achieve this, there is pressure on all
players to find innovative ways of keeping housing costs down, funding and
using alternative technology and developing innovative financing products
for affordable housing.

From a study conducted by Matthew Nel and Associates it was indicated
that the number of available housing stock is insufficient to meet the de-
mand and, not enough new housing stock is being created to fill this gap,
thereby limiting the ability of the banks to distribute the R42 billion by the
target date. The steep rise in the cost of building materials as well as the
shortage in skills in the construction sector adds more pressure to the chal-
lenge.

Banks are investigating innovative ways to allow low-income earners to
afford low cost housing. Alternatives include the extension of the lending
term and a stepped rate product, where the initial interest charged is be-
low the market rate, but increases by equal increments over the term by a
percentage which is lower than the expected wage adjustments, ensuring
affordability in the future (van Rooyen: 2006). In an attempt to increase
the rate of new housing supply in the affordable housing sector, banks are
becoming more involved in facilitating the creation of new affordable hous-
ing stock. ABSA has established its own construction company, which is
aimed at facilitating low cost housing projects. It also owns pockets of land
and is currently involved in a partnership between National and Gauteng
Provincial Housing Departments in a development project which intends to
deliver 5 436 housing units at Olievenhoutbosch (van Rooyen: 2006). It is
anticipated that similar arrangements and collaborative engagements be-
tween established government and the banks will be made in future around
the country.

* The National Department of Housing administered two grants namely
the Human Settlement Redevelopment Grant and the Integrated Hou-
sing and Human Settlement Development Programme Grant during
2005/06. However, with effect from 1 April 2006 the two grants have
been combined into one grant.

» The purpose of the Human Settlement Redevelopment Grant is to fund
projects that aim to improve the quality of the environment by identifying
and addressing dysfunctionalities in human settlements. (NB this grant
is being administered under programme 3).

« The Human Settlement Redevelopment Grant was phased out on
31 March 2006 and all the funds were transferred to the provinces
before 31 March 2006. Projects under construction will be completed, in
terms of the provisions of the approved business plans. The Integrated
Housing and Human Settlement Development Grant will as from
1 April 2006 be the only Grant funding housing delivery and attendant
matters such as social amenities.



19

The funding and expenditure in respect of the Human Settlement Redevel-
opment Programme Grant is reflected below:

Graph 1 HSRP: Analysis of expenditure as at 31 March 2006

Analysis of expenditure for the period ending 31 March 2006

100000
90000
80000
70000
60000
50000
40000
30000
20000
10000

B Total Available
ESpentby Provinces
W Unspent Funds

Integrated Housing and Human Settlement Development
Grant

General

The purpose of the Integrated Housing and Human Settlement Develop-
ment Grant is:
» To finance the implementation of the National Housing Programmes.

« To facilitate the establishment and maintenance of habitable, stable and
sustainable human settlements in which all citizens will have access to
selected social and economic amenities.

» Progressive eradication of informal settlements on a phased basis in
accordance with the goals set out through the target for reducing slum

\



20

dwellers through formalisation of informal settlements by 2014 and the
eradication of such by 2020.

This Grant is being administered under programme six but, will in future be
administered the under Programme 5. The grant funds the following key
elements of housing administration and delivery:

land acquisitions to accommodate well located housing developments;

internal infrastructure (such as roads, water and sewerage connections,
street lighting and storm-water drainage);

the development of the housing chapters of the IDP which must be un-
dertaken as part of the IDP process in line with integrated development
planning;

housing for qualifying beneficiaries through the utilisation of the appro-
ved housing subsidies (escalated by the inflation rate each year).

The Integrated Housing and Human Settlement Development Grant had
R4,8 billion available for distribution to the provinces during the 2005/06
financial year and it is reflected below. The un-audited expenditure in re-
spect of the grant is also contained in the table.

Graph 2: IHHSDG: Analysis of expenditure as at
31 March 2006
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Spending trends for 12 months over 3 years
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NB. It should be borne in mind that the majority of the projects are multi-
year projects. In view of the aforementioned it must be noted that all prov-
inces must still finalise the aforementioned projects approved and under
construction before the Comprehensive Plan came into operation. In view
of the contractual obligations the projects must be completed and the only
source of funding is the Integrated Housing and Human Settlement Devel-
opment Grant.

In terms of the Division of Revenue Act, 2005 and the Practice Note is-
sued by the National Treasury, the monthly transfers of funds to the nine
Provinces were complied with and the funds transferred to the accredited
bank accounts of the Provincial Treasuries. The funds were transferred
on the scheduled dates as approved by the National Treasury except for
April 2005. The National Department experienced problems during April
2005 in that the approved business plans could only be submitted after the
scheduled first payment date. The National Department normally transfers
the funds on the first Friday of each month unless it is a public holiday or
the first working day of the month. The Receiving Officer of the Provinces
must submit in terms of the provisions of the PFMA a report to the National
Department on the funds received and the expenditure incurred and re-
ports on serious deviations. The National Transferring Officer submits a
consolidated report to the National Treasury on the expenditure information
received by the 20th of each month.

The National Department retained no funds, which form part of the grant,
for administrative purposes. No funds were delayed or withheld during the
financial year in terms of the Division of Revenue Act.

However, it must be emphasised that where under spending occurred the
National Department wrote to the Provincial Head of Department and if
necessary to the Provincial Treasury to address the matter. Discussions in
regard to under spending and housing delivery matters were held with the
Senior Management of all the provinces and the Minister of Housing also
visited most of the provinces during the course of the financial to ensure
optimal expenditure. The National Department followed all the processes
prescribed in the Division of Revenue Act to ensure compliance with the Act
and Grant framework.

In respect of the expenditure, provinces in general improved on their rate
of expenditure. Table 3 indicates that there only is 4% of the total amount
available funds inclusive of the roll over from the previous financial year.
In comparison with the roll over of 8% of the 2005/06 financial year. In ad-
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dition as can be gleaned from the graph above, monthly spending trends
were fairly stable and correlate to monthly projections.

Of all the provinces only the Free State, Limpopo and Mpumalanga did not

spend their total allocation for 2005/06. The problems as to why provinces

are unable to spend their total allocation vary as each province experi-

ences unique problems which are briefly summarised as follows:

* Inclement weather conditions, such as higher than normal rainfall,
extreme cold influencing the setting of foundations, which at certain
times of the year affects the delivery process.

» Capacity problems at provincial and local authority level eg. technical
skills and project management.

* As the SMME'’s are still in the process of being empowered with skills
the progress with delivery is slow at this point in time.

» The standard of the construction work is not always up to standard which
results in the progress payments being delayed until the necessary
rectification is effected.

» Shortage of suitable building material creates a delay.

» Tracing of beneficiaries who migrate and are untraceable results in the
delay of the transfer process and the need to start the whole process
afresh. In many instances beneficiaries die and this causes the same
problems which have already been mentioned.

* The cumbersome release process of land located in tribal areas also
contributes to the problem.

In view of the capacity restraints at provincial level the National Department
introduced the OPSCAP facility. The purpose of the facility is to enable a
province, if a proven need exists and subject to the approval of the Account-
ing Officer of the Provincial Department of Housing in consultation with the
Member of the Executive Council (MEC), utilise the lesser amount based
on 2% of the total voted allocation, approved in terms of national policies
and guidelines of the voted allocation to support the approved national and
provincial programmes and priorities. The provinces are thus enabled to
employ professional external assistance to assist in the housing delivery
process and transfer skills to permanent personnel. The skills referred to
are inter alia building inspectors, engineers and contract managers to en-
sure that quality housing is provided for and service delivery improved.

The National Department intends to visit the provincial personnel more fre-
quently and at the same time view projects selected by the Department to
establish and ensure that quality housing units are delivered and that value
for money is received.



General non-financial information

Projects and subsidies

During the first nine months of the 2005/06 financial year 321 projects
were approved by Provincial Housing Departments. This brings the total
number of projects approved since 1994 to 4 827. The 321 projects that
were approved during the 2005/06 financial year represents 137 746 subsi-
dies which bring the total number of subsidies approved to 2 848 160 since
inception of the Housing Subsidy Scheme. The provincial breakdown of
the projects and subsidies are as follows:

Beneficiaries

The number of beneficiaries approved for the 2005/06 financial year up to
31 March 2006 was 153 528. The total number of beneficiaries approved
since 1994 up to now is 1 740 122. The detail per province is set out in
the table below:
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Delivery

During 2005/06 up to 31 March 2006 a total of 115 175 sites were in the
process of development and 137 659 units were completed. This brings the
total for houses completed or under construction since 1994 to 2 081 694.

Grand Total: 31 March 2006: 2 081 694 units completed or under construc-
tion

A particular challenge would be the implementation and the maintenance
of a fully capacitated and operational information system at provincial level
and/or accredited local municipalities in terms of providing reliable infor-
mation that will facilitate the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan.
In this regard and in line with the accreditation framework the Department
commenced with discussions and planning for the provision of the neces-
sary information management Infrustructure that would be critical for the
accredited municipalities.

In addition, the Department, through an independent consultant consor-
tium, established a credible and authenticated housing waiting list for Cape
Town with effective processes and plans. A database was developed and
handed over to the City Council of Cape Town for inclusion in their infor-
mation environment. The challenge in the coming financial year will be to
consolidate this initiative for the rest of the provinces in order to populate a
complete housing demand database.

2.5. Overview of the organisational
environment for 2005/06

The department of Housing is relatively small in size, despite it's growth
over the years. During the period under review, though a number of stra-
tegic objectives were fulfilled the department had to deal with a number of
challenges in relations to the following critical issues:

* Inadequate or lack of sufficient capacity to meet the Comprehensive
Plan objectives with specific reference to skills in project management,
Engineering, Monitoring and Evaluation, Town and Regional Planning
as well as in the area of Economics.

Organisational instability and high staff turnover which is as a result of
the fluidity in the public service in general.
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» De-motivated personnel corps, caused by amongst others heavy work
load due to lack of capacity.

» Lack of national policy guidelines/retention strategy to arrest skills drain
within the public service.

In order to address some of these challenges, concerted efforts to fill all
vacancies, particularly those at management and technical levels were
embarked upon, as well as employing contract workers with a view to filling
some of the gaps, while the process of finalising the organisational struc-
ture is still underway.

The department, in the meantime collaborated with the Department of Pub-
lic Service and Administration in conducting a skills Audit in line with the
requirements of the Comprehensive Plan as well as participating and con-
tributing to the initiatives of the scarce skills framework championed by the
Department of Public Service and Administration.

Further as the Comprehensive Plan strategy requires integration and
sound Co-operative Government, the department during the period under
review has embarked on the process of assessing and defining the hous-
ing delivery chain in line with the current institutional arrangements. This
exercise aims at streamlining and the possible redefining of a new housing
delivery chain in relation to all spheres of government. In this regard, dur-
ing the period under review a Task Team comprised of officials from both
National and Provincial departments of Housing was established to deal
with matters of common interest including the delivery model and aligning
structural configurations. The outcome of this exercise shall be presented
to the Cabinet Makgotla scheduled for July 2006 and January 2007.

During the period under review the department initiated a number of pro-
grammes relating to Employee Wellness. A major achievement in this re-
gard is the establishment of a 24-hour Toll Free assistance telephone line
for all employees who may find themselves in a situation that requires im-
mediate counselling and related activities.

2.6 Strategic overview and key policy
developments: 2002/03 - 2008/09

In line with Government’s constitutional responsibility to ensure that every
South African has access to adequate housing, the Department of Housing
aims to guarantee that there is a supply of affordable permanent residential
structures, with secure tenure, and which give access to basic services,
privacy and protection against the elements. Following an intensive hous-
ing policy review and consultation process, including a national housing
summit in November 2003, the Minister of Housing presented the Com-
prehensive Plan for the Development of Sustainable Human Settlements
to Cabinet in September 2004. The “plan” builds on existing housing policy
articulated in the 1994 White Paper on Housing but, shifts the strategic fo-
cus from simply ensuring the delivery of affordable housing to making sure
that housing is delivered in settlements that are both sustainable and habit-
able. The strategic priorities in the comprehensive plan are to:

* accelerate housing delivery;

» improve the quality of the housing products and environments to ensure
asset creation;

* ensure a single, efficient formal housing market;
» restructure and integrate human settlements; and
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« combat and fight crime and corruption in the process for housing deve-
lopment.

Despite the delivery of 1 966 519 new subsidised houses between 1994
and March 2005, with a further 115 175 sites serviced and 137 659 houses
built between April 2005 and March 2006, the housing backlog has contin-
ued to grow. To accelerate housing delivery, the department has simplified
the administration of housing subsidies by collapsing the income qualifi-
cation categories. As a result qualifying households receive the same
housing subsidy amount, thus extending the reach of the housing pro-
gramme by allowing households earning up to R7 000 per month (up from
R3 500 per month) to qualify for housing subsidies, and upgrading of infor-
mal settlements.

The comprehensive plan is being implemented with particular attention gi-
ven to the pilot projects that are implemented throughout the country. The
pilot projects will improve the living conditions of an estimated 103 000
households in informal settlements. The informal settlement upgrading
projects provide for phased, area based development as well as providing
community participation and project management as an integral part of
housing projects. The goal of eradicating or upgrading all informal settle-
ments in the country by 2014/15 is the prime objective of the comprehen-
sive plan.

In order to achieve the comprehensive plan’s objectives in the medium
term, a set of interventions is proposed as the department’s strategic agen-
da for the medium term. These include:

Improving the national housing subsidy scheme

+ To address the objectives of accelerating housing delivery and
promoting the development of a single functioning housing market, the
Department will introduce a new credit-linked subsidy to promote access
to mortgage finance. This subsidy has been designed in partnership with
the financial services sector, and will constitute government support for
the achievement of the lending targets for affordable housing defined in
the Financial Services Charter.

» Recognising the potential for achieving urban efficiency and renewal by
constructing subsidised social and rental housing, the Department has
completed a new Social Housing Policy. This policy will be implemented
through the establishment of a Social Housing Regulatory Agency and
the introduction of new grants for the social housing institutions required
to develop, hold and manage the envisaged housing stock, and new
capital subsidies for the construction of the social housing stock.
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Improve partnerships with the private sector and other
housing stakeholders

» Inadditiontointroducing a new subsidy to encourage private lendingin the
affordable housing sector, the Department will continue an engagement
with the financial services sector to support the development of new
housing finance products (including affordable fixed rate mortgages),
and government-funded insurance against losses on loans for affordable
housing.

* To ensure that private developers and contractors are able to run
profitable businesses while building affordable housing, the Department
will revise the project linked housing subsidy scheme to introduce greater
flexibility in the phasing of projects and streamline the progress payment
system.

* In recent years, the number of NGOs that are active in the housing
sector has declined dramatically. In 2005, the Urban Sector Network
was dissolved and many of its former affiliates have since been
disbanded. This reduces the institutional capacity in the housing sector
and weakens housing delivery outcomes because of the absence of
advocacy and community consultation capacity. In the medium term, the
Department will redefine the support and funding provided through the
Peoples’ Housing Partnership Trust to ensure that the non-governmental
partners in housing delivery are strengthened.

Improving the capacity to deliver and administer and
regulate housing delivery

» Having identified provincial and municipal capacity constraints as a bar-
rier to accelerating housing delivery, the Department will provide pro-
vinces and municipalities with housing project planning, management
and implementation support. This will be achieved by repositioning
Thubelisha Homes as a Departmental Agency that is able to provide
provinces and municipalities with technical assistance and expertise
in unblocking housing delivery bottlenecks and preparing fast-tracked
emergency housing projects for funding by the province.

* The Department will also prioritise the implementation of capacity
building initiatives such as the programme to accredit municipalities to
administer national housing programmes. Additional funding amounting
to R180 million over the medium term has been allocated to support the
accreditation of municipalities.

* In order to promote inter- and intra-governmental coordination and
planning alignment, the Department is in the process of reviewing
the planning that is required of provincial housing departments
and municipalities with a view to streamlining and aligning various
complementary budget and development planning processes.

» With a view to ensuring that all public resources are efficiently employed,
the Minister of Housing will redefine the mandates of some of the other
public entities reporting to her, including the National Homebuilders
Registration Council, the National Housing Finance Corporation and the
Social Housing Foundation.
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2.7 Expenditure trends

Total expenditure more than doubled from R4,2 billion in 2002/03 to
R9,5 billion in 2008/09. The average annual growth rate of 7,7 per cent
between 2002/03 and 2005/06 is set to accelerate to 21,5 per cent from
2005/06 to 2008/09.

Programme 5: Housing Development Funding accounts for the largest por-
tion of the Vote (92,6 per cent in 2005/06) as it accommodates the integrat-
ed housing and human settlement development conditional grant to prov-
inces. This programme will experience the most significant growth at an
average of 22,5 per cent per year between 2005/06 and 2008/09, reflecting
the strategic priority of accelerating housing delivery. This growth is driven
by additional allocations of almost R4 billion for informal settlement upgrad-
ing and R1,2 billion for the introduction of credit-linked subsidies between
2006/07 and 2008/09. Apart from the increases in the conditional grant,
Housing Development Funding grows as a result of additional funding for
implementing the new social housing programme, which includes the es-
tablishment of the Social Housing Regulatory Agency and the introduction
of grants to finance the establishment of social housing institutions and the
preparation of social housing projects.

The previous Programme 4: Housing Sector Performance and Programme
5: Housing Equity have been consolidated into a single new Programme
4: Housing Sector Performance and Equity. Expenditure in Housing Sector
Performance and Equity declined between 2002/03 and 2003/04 because
the development of the housing and urbanisation information system was
completed and transfer payments to and on behalf of institutions such as
the South African Housing Trust were phased out. Expenditure is set to
grow to R196,6 million in 2006/07 and then drop by an average annual of
13,3 per cent to R147,8 million in 2008/09. This is largely due to the ra-
tionalisation and planned closure of public entities reporting to the Minister
of Housing, including Servcon Housing Solutions and the Social Housing
Foundation. Expenditure in the Programme Management programme de-
clines between 2005/06 and 2006/07 because the human settlement rede-
velopment grant has been consolidated with the housing subsidy grant in
Programme 5: Housing Development Funding.

Transfer payments make up a large portion of total expenditure. The
step up in the integrated housing and human settlement grant to prov-
inces translates into average annual growth of 21,5 per cent in transfers
between 2005/06 and 2008/09. There have been significant increases in
compensation of employees, which is expected to grow from R35,6 million
in 2002/03 to R163,9 million in 2008/09, an average annual increase of
29,0 per cent. This is because the department has been restructured and
expanded through the addition of 128 posts (from 276 in 2002/03 to an
anticipated 404 in 2008/09) to ensure that the Comprehensive Plan for
the Development of Sustainable Human Settlements is successfully imple-
mented. Expenditure on goods and services increased significantly from
R53,9 million in 2002/03 to R156,0 million in 2005/06 to accommodate the
increase in the number of employees.

The transfer of the costs for leases and accommodation charges from the
Department of Public Works to individual departments will come into effect
on 1 April 2006. An amount of R7,4 million is devolved to the department
from the budget of DPW in 2006/07, R8,0 million in 2007/08 and R8,6 mil-
lion in 2008/09. Expenditure for this purpose is also adjusted for 2002/03
to 2005/06.
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Departmental receipts

Departmental receipts are projected to be R484 000 in 2006/07. Receipts
come largely from financial transactions (recovery of loans and advances)
but, also include interest earned on housing subsidies, sales of publictions
and other sales. In 2002/03 the department had unusually high receipts
because of the sale of assets associated with the disestablishment of the
SA Housing Trust.

2.8 Programme Performance

Programme 1: Administration

Purpose

Administration provides the Department with strategic leadership, and ad-
ministrative and management support services. The Special Investigative
Task team, housed within Administration, investigates allegations of malad-
ministration, irregularities, fraud and corruption related to the implementa-
tion of national housing programmers.

Measurable objective

To provide strategic leadership and administrative and management sup-
port services to the Department. The Programme provides the corporate
support through the following Directorates:

» Corporate Services, provides support to the management and Depart-
mental IT Systems, record keeping and general corporate activities of the
Department. Corporate legal support is provided for in this component.

¢ Chief Directorate Financial Services.
* International and Intergovernmental Relations.
¢ Communications Services.

Chief Directorate: Corporate Support

The purpose of the Chief Directorate: Corporate Support is to manage and
coordinate corporate support functions within the Department with a view
to ensuring efficiency of Department’s systems and procedures as well as
compliance with the government statutory and policy frameworks. It is also
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responsible for the departmental human resource provision as well as the
transformation programme. The programme provides administrative sup-
port to policy and decision-making structures, as well as corporate function
management.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

During the period under review the sub-programme saw an increase in
the number of meetings of the policy and decision making structures that
resulted in an increased work load for the Directorate Secretariat Sup-
port. The filling and appointment of some senior managers’ positions also
brought in strategic leadership that was lacking in some areas. The depart-
ment initiated a number of programmes relating to Employee Wellness.
A major achievement in this regard is the establishment of a 24-hour Toll
Free assisted telephone line for all employees that may find themselves in
a situation that requires immediate counselling and related activities. This
in itself brought enhancement in service delivery. The introduction of equip-
ment security has minimised the wave of property being lost. It should be
mentioned that employee-relations was relatively calm during the period
under review since there was no major industrial action.

During the period under review, though a number of strategic objectives
were fulfilled the department had to deal with a number of challenges in
relation to the following critical issues:

» Inadequate or lack of sufficient capacity to meet the Comprehensive
Plan objectives with specific reference to skills in Project Management,
Engineering, Monitoring and Evaluation, Town and Regional planning as
well as in the area of Economics.

» Organisational instability and high staff turnover which is as a result of
the fluidity in the public service in general.

* A demotivated personnel corps which is caused amongst others by
heavy work loads due to lack of capacity.

» Lack of national policy guidelines/retention strategy to arrest skills drain
within the public service.

In order to address some of these challenges, concerted efforts to fill all
vacancies, particularly those at management and technical levels were
embarked upon as well as employing contract workers with a view to filling
some of the gaps, while the process of finalising the organisational struc-
ture is still underway.

The department, in the meantime collaborated with the Department of Pub-
lic Service and Administration in conducting a skills Audit in line with the
requirements of the Comprehensive Plan as well as participating and con-
tributing to the initiatives of the scarce skills framework championed by the
Department of Public Service and Administration.

Further as the Comprehensive Plan strategy requires integration and
sound Co-operative Government, the department during the period under
review has embarked on the process of assessing and defining the hous-
ing delivery chain in line with the current institutional arrangements. This
exercise aims at streamlining and the possible redefining of a new housing
delivery chain in relation to all spheres of government. In this regard, dur-
ing the period under review a Task Team comprised of officials from both
National and Provincial departments of Housing was established to deal
with matters of common interest including the delivery model and aligning
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structural configurations. The outcome of this exercise was presented to
the Cabinet Lekgotla scheduled for July 2006.

The Comprehensive Plan for the Development of Sustainable Human Settle-
ments envisages a “collaborative approach” in respect of housing anti-cor-
ruption initiatives. The Directorate held meetings with various stakeholders
- the Special Investigations Unit (SIU), SAPS, NHBRC, SARS, NIA, Public
Protector Auditor General, the National Department of Provincial and Local
Government and two (2) internal stakeholders being Sub-directorate: Inter-
nal Audit and Directorate Security Services. Following these meetings, the
Directorate drafted and circulated (to NHBRC, NIA, DPLG and Sub directo-
rate: Internal Audit of NDOH) Memoranda of Understanding with a view of
structuring and streamlining relations with the relevant stakeholders.

A Memorandum of Understanding between the NDOH and the Office of the
Auditor General and the Special Investigations Unit has been concluded.

The Directorate has drafted terms of reference for a National Housing Anti-
Corruption Forum whose objective is to create a framework for coordination
and cooperation between the NDOH and Provincial Departments of Hous-
ing in respect of the investigation of allegations of fraud and corruption in
the implementation of the National Housing Programmes and other anti-
corruption initiatives. It is hoped that the National Housing Anti-Corruption
Forum will develop a uniform and consistent approach across all Provinces
in Housing investigations. Currently there is lack of uniformity as evidenced
by the fact that some Provinces have established Institutional Capacity for
Housing Investigations while some Provinces are still lagging behind.

The Directorate has created a Case Management System that is used
when we receive a complaint. Once a complaint has been received, it is
registered onto the database of cases and a case file is opened. Cases that
involve Provinces are then referred to respective Provinces for actioning.
The case management system facilitates and aids the Directorate in identi-
fying the patterns and trends forming the subject matter of the complaints.

The Directorate drafted Terms of Reference for a task team to investigate
allegations of irregularities, fraud and corruption in the Town View Hous-
ing Project at Bruntville, KwaZulu-Natal. As a result of the Ministerial en-
quiry by the New Zealand Government on the awarding of citizenship to Mr
G. Pitcher after the local newspaper slammed the housing project that Mr
Pitcher was handling on behalf of the Provincial Government in Kwazulu
Natal Province, the Directorate has engaged with the Kwazulu Natal De-
partment of Housing over this matter and we have reached an agreement
that an investigation be conducted over the project in order to put closure
to the speculations and be able to advise the Minister accordingly as re-
quested by the New Zealand Government.
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The Directorate had to draft the terms of reference for the investigation
which must cover the investigation of allegations pertaining to:

e poor workmanship;

¢ maladministration;

* irregularities;

» incomplete housing unit; and
» fraud and corruption.

The Directorate on a monthly basis monitors and follows up SAPS cases
that are under investigation and cases that are before the Courts. Currently
the list of SAPS cases comprises of sixty two (62) cases in all Provinces.

In one of the above cases the Special Commercial Crimes Court in Pretoria
convicted one Ms Patricia Pasiwe Ulana on twenty six (26) counts involv-
ing fraud and theft and she was sentenced to six (6) years imprisonment,
two (2) years suspended. In Huhudi, Vryburg (Initially investigated by the
SIU at the request of the Department) the Assets Forfeiture Unit obtained a
confiscation order and the Directorate requested the Assets Forfeiture Unit
to pay the proceeds back to the Department when a forfeiture order has
been granted and the case finalised.

The Directorate made a submission to Stratman for the promulgation, sub-
ject to MINMEC approval, of a single Presidential Proclamation authorising
the SIU to conduct Housing investigations in all Province. Currently sepa-
rate Presidential Proclamations have been issued at the request of Pre-
miers of certain Provinces in respect of Housing investigations and some
utilised forensic investigation firms. This leads to lack of control and coordi-
nation of these investigations. Stratman has approved the submission and
the next step is to amplify the submission for the Committee of HODs.

The Directorate received a request from the Minister to conduct a probe
into the sale of RDP houses in Uitenhage at the instance of a certain firm
of Attorneys. The Directorate studied the relevant documentation and held
meetings with the firm of attorneys in question and submitted a report to
the Minister.

The Directorate has not achieved the objective of implementing the Anti-
Corruption prescripts due to the fact that at a meeting it had with Sub-
directorate: Internal Audit, it emerged that the Directorate was also in the
process of drafting anti-corruption prescripts. The Directorate has therefore
proposed a Memorandum of Understanding to the Sub-directorate with
the intention to work together on matters of fraud and corruption as it had
emerged that there are areas of cooperation in the scope of work.
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The directorate has during the period under review aligned departmental
planning in line with treasury guidelines and the cabinet and cluster plan-
ning cycles. The mainstreaming of the planning cycle brought with it ben-
efits on the quality of the Strategic plan and effects were realised on the
performance monitoring.

Challenges were, however, on different levels of management understan-
ding of their core business purpose and objectives. This was rectified
through workshops conducted during the financial year. These workshops
were conducted in line with the planning and review periods. Performance
evaluation reports were produced, discussed and reviewed with manage-
ment during the reporting period with the aim of putting corrective meas-
ures and strategic service delivery standards in place. The Departmental
Annual report 2004/05 was consolidated, analysed, evaluated and submit-
ted to Parliament.

In the main, the directorate mainstreamed and aligned the Departmental
strategic planning process to the government wide planning cycle with
clear performance targets and quantifiable outputs.

Chief Directorate: Communication Services

As a Chief Directorate responsible for the Communication Services of the
Department, the service delivery objectives and indicators of the Chief Di-
rectorate for the year included innovative and pro-active Media Relations
and Research, Production and Public Information, as well as Stakeholder
Relations strategies aimed at:

» Creating awareness among all relevant target audiences including
beneficiaries, the public and, all partners in the housing delivery chain.

» Enhancing application of the Department’s branding through a revitalised
employee awareness programme.

* Engaging all communication stakeholders towards an integrated
programme of housing communication.

» Supporting and profiling the Ministerial and Departmental programmes
and events.

In line with these deliverables the Chief Directorate participated in all pro-
grammes and events aimed at creating awareness of the mandate, deliv-
erables, and achievements of the Department during 2005/6.

The Chief Directorate is composed of two directorates, namely Public Infor-
mation and Internal Communication whose primary responsibilities are to
develop strategies for maximised communication to beneficiaries, the gen-
eral public and internal audiences through a programme of planned com-
munication messages, vehicles and events specifically designed to service
these specific target audiences.

The Chief Directorate has during the past financial year ensured enhanced
branding through the design and production of all event materials including
conferences and indabas. Exhibitions were also mounted at various events
across the country in support of the Minister’s programme of community
interaction.

Publications aimed at beneficiary awareness as well as general public un-
derstanding of the role of housing in community upliftment were updated
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and conceptualised and, have made a contribution towards maximising sec-
tor information access. Among these are the Subsidy Brochure, Housing
Contacts, Economic Opportunities Created by Housing, the user-friendly
Comprehensive Plan and the Housing Demand Database booklet. Public
media including advertorials in national and local newspapers were utilised
(for public awareness and education).

Distribution of publications was also maximised through distribution at ex-
hibitions, indabas, and Izimbizos, with the additional use of Government
Communication Information System (GCIS) Multi Purpose Community
Centres (MPCCs), provincial information centres and, by making article
contributions to a variety of beneficiary targeted publications.

A public education exercise in partnership with banking institutions brought
about a ten (10) week radio series aired on 6 SABC Radio Language sta-
tions, named Homey2Homey. The Radio series was made in conjunction
with ABSA based on the Housing Consumer modules developed by the
Directorate Capacity Building. This occurred in the context of public private
partnership. The focus of the broadcast was aimed at informing benefici-
aries and the general public of their rights and responsibilities in terms of
government assisted housing as well as Bank bonded houses.

The media was utilised to support the departmental strategic outputs and
ministerial programmes. Coverage was secured for the International Hous-
ing Seminar. This linked with the coverage of the AMCHUD initiatives at a
continental sphere in pursuit of the continental obligations resulting from
conventions South Africa is a signatory to. The domestic media environ-
ment changed with the public demand for housing and the cross border
municipalities.

As part of the seminar efforts were made to mobilise in partnership with the
Western Cape Provincial Housing and Local Government Department and
South African Homeless People’s Federation, for a site visit by the Minister
of Housing and Social Contract Partners to the Ekuphumleni Housing De-
velopment (SAHPF Project), in Hazeldean, as part of the programme for
the Housing Indaba. This assisted in promoting the departmental initiatives
on promoting access to shelter.

Central to public mobilisation was the construction of 13 houses within the
women’s build initiative, coordinated in partnership with the private sec-
tor and NGOs, during August. In advancing government’s Letsema pro-
gramme/concept aligned to the People’s Housing Process which encour-
age community participation and ownership, the 13 houses were handed
to their owners in Protea South, Soweto. The project also helped in the
transference of skills to all participants and members of the community.

The chief directorate participated in the 716 Days of activism on no violence
against women and children. This annual campaign aim at advancing and
highlighting the plight of women and vulnerable groups so as to help real-
ise equality and human rights. During this campaign, two POWA (People
Opposing Woman Abuse) shelters were renovated, while 120 houses were
built and handed over to recipients nationally. All 9 (nine) provinces partici-
pated in the campaign.
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Shelter renovation as part of the
“16 Days of activism on no violence
against women and children”



DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2005-2006

36

BREAKING NEW GROUND IN HOUSING DELIVERY * houses * security * comfort

Chief Directorate: Financial Services

Financial Services provide sound financial management advice and infor-
mation in order to measure the performance of the Department in achieving
its aims & objectives. It further ensures that sound financial administration
systems and procedures are developed and implemented to safeguard the
resources needed to achieve departmental objectives.

During the year under review:

The following are notable achievements during the reporting period:-

Working with National Treasury and the Directorate: Strategic Planning
an improved format of provincial business plans was developed.

Engaged the National Treasury in respect of key amendments to the
Division of Revenue Act (DORA) aimed at improving the arrangements
related to monitoring of the accountability of conditional grants.

With assistance of National Treasury all provinces submitted their
business plans before the end of the financial year and, as a result the
chief directorate was able to submit a consolidated plan to National
Treasury on time;

A lot of work was done in developing or updating policies to address
various issues raised by the Auditor General in the previous year’s audit
report. As a result new policies for petty cash, debtors management,
loss control and account management were approved.

Assisted Provinces with the debtors system by:

* Undertaking more provincial visits to alleviate the capacity con-
straints experienced by Provinces.

» Concluding an understanding with the deeds office for a bulk deeds
search for all Provinces. This will assist in checking completeness of
the property register on the debtors system.

All necessary reports were submitted to governance structures, other
units in the Department and, to the National Treasury.

The receipting process was successfully automated thus eliminating the
tedious manual process and its associated risks.



Service delivery achievements:
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Sub-programme:

Corporate
Services

Outputs

To provide legal opinions
and advice

To draft, review, amend and
interpret legal documents

To attended to housing
related legal inquiries from
members of the public

Functional Desktop
Management and Support
solution

Improved Network
Management and
Performance Solution

Successfully Deployed
Novell Identity Management

Department Integrated ICT
5 year Plan

Centralised filing system

Management of transport
services

Upgraded switchboard and
reception area

Refurbishment of
building according to
approved layout plans

Coordinated corporate
function

Developed processes for
the Department

Compiled and updated
database

Well equipped boardrooms

Approved document
classification system

Security plan for
international events

Encrypted electronic
communication data lines
for secure transmission of
sensitive information

Security clearances of staff
and service providers

Output performance
measures/service
delivery indicators

No. of legal opinions
attended to

No. of valid and legally
enforceable documents
reviewed, amended and
drafted

No. of inquiries attended to

Improved desktop
management and support

Improved network
management and
performance

Successfully Deployed
Novell Identity Management

Approved departmental ICT
5 year Plan

Approved and implemented
centralised filing system

% transport requests
managed

Operational switchboard,
call centre and reception
service which promote the
department’s programmes

Optimum use of office
space according to PWD
space norms

No. of Departmental events
coordinated

Approved Departmental
process and guidelines

Developed database

Monitor usage of the
boardrooms

Implemented document
classification system

Security plan for
international events

Encrypted electronic
communication data lines

Processed applications of
security clearances for staff
and service providers
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Actual performance against target

Target

All opinions completed

All documents attended to

All litigation matters
attended to

All queries attended to

Functional Desktop
Management and Support
solution

Network Management and
Performance Plan

Successfully Deployed
Novell Identity Management

Department Integrated ICT
5 year Plan

Approved and implemented
centralised filing system by
June 2005

% Transport managed

Upgraded switchboard and
reception area June 2005

Building refurbished

No. of Departmental events
coordinated

Approved Departmental
process and guidelines

Approved database on
Service Providers

Managed and maintain
accessibility to the
boardrooms

Implement and monitor
classification of documents

Coordinate protection
security services during
international events

Encrypt electronic
communication data lines

Process applications of
security clearances for staff
and service providers

Actual
achievements

37 legal opinions requested
and completed

14 received documents and
attended

10 litigation matters
received and attended

9 queries received and
attended

Deployment has been
partially completed

Not done due to budgetary
constraints

98% of the deployment has
been completed

Not done due to budgetary
constraints

Centralised filling system
was not implemented

All requests managed and
attended to

Switchboard upgraded

Building refurbished

All major functions
co-ordinated successfully

Process and guidelines not
approved

Service Providers now on
the database and updated

Upgraded Boardroom
Booking System

Document classification
implemented and monitored

Protection security services
during all international
events coordinated

Electronic communication
data lines encrypted

Applications for security
clearances for staff and
service providers processed
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Purpose

Policy Planning and Research aims to develop sound national human set-
tlement and housing policies, supported by research and underpinned by
an appropriate legislative framework. In addition, the programme makes
a contribution to the United Nations Habitat Foundation. The programme
comprises the following sub programmes:

* Human Settlement Policy and Integration focuses on sustainable urban
and rural human settlement development policy and is responsible for
international cooperation on human settlement policy.

» National Housing Policy and Strategy develops national housing policy
and strategies. It also maintains the national housing code, manages
the integrated multi-year housing development plans, and guides the
design of appropriate institutional frameworks for implementing housing
policy and strategy.

* Housing Framework Legislation drafts housing legislation required to
implement approved policy and strategies monitors the implementation
of housing legislation and assesses the impact of other legislation on the
housing function.

» The Chief Directorate Research initiates, undertakes and manages
research on human settlements and housing.

Measurable objectives

Adequate housing for all South Africans by 2014, through policy, legislation
and research that enables housing delivery in sustainable human settle-
ments.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent Output

During the year under review the Chief Directorate Policy Planning pur-
sued the development of policy and strategies as provided by the Com-
prehensive Plan for the Development of Sustainable Human Settlements.
This plan maps out the housing policy and priorities for the next decade.
International programmes and events, which served to enhance our under-
standing of sustainable human settlement development were also support-
ed by providing policy inputs and actively participating in country prepara-
tions and the events themselves.

In line with the commitments made in the Strategic Plan for 2005/06 and
the newly identified needs of the Comprehensive Plan, various housing
policy pieces were developed in order to facilitate the implementation of
the Plan and to respond to the housing needs of people in particular cir-
cumstances. Policy needs to be underpinned by legislation to ensure suc-
cessful implementation, to this end the development of new legislation to
support the Plan was embarked upon. As at end of the financial year a
number of policies were awaiting MINMEC approval.
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Programme Policy Developments

International Co-operation Policy Support

The 20th session of the Governing Council (GC-20) of UN-HABITAT took
place from 4-8 April 2005, at the UN Office in Nairobi, Kenya. Forty-eight of
the 58 member States of the UN-HABITAT Governing Council were repre-
sented. During the week, delegates convened in high-level segment ses-
sions, dialogues, a Committee of the Whole (COW), a drafting committee
and a contact group to consider draft resolutions.

GC-20 concluded its work by adopting 22 resolutions on issues relating to

the budget and work programme. These resolutions pertain to the follow-

ing:

» post-conflict, natural and human-made disasters assessment and recon-
struction;

» the World Urban Forum (WUF);

» strengthening the Slum Upgrading Facility of the UN Habitat and Human
Settlements Foundation;

» decentralisation and strengthening of local authorities;

* enhancing the involvement of civil society in local governance;

» global campaigns on secure tenure and urban governance;

» gender equality in human settlements development;

» thethirteenth session ofthe UN Commissionfor Sustainable Development
(CSD-13);

» small island developing States;

» Habitat Programme Managers (HPMs) and regional offices;

» the provisional agenda for GC-21;

» organisation and themes for future GC sessions;

» sustainable development of Arctic cities;

* housing as a component of the right to an adequate standard of living for
persons who are vulnerable and disadvantaged;

» youth and human settlements;

« establishment of the African Ministers’ Conference on Housing and
Urban Development (AMCHUD);

» preservation and sustainable development of the oases;
» least developed countries;
» access to basic services for all; and

» special and best practices, good policy and enabling legislation in
support of the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs).

A draft resolution on the implementation of MDG Target 11 was not adopted
by the closing plenary due to a lack of consensus on a proposal for reset-
ting the target.

The 13th session of the United Nations Commission on Sustainable Devel-
opment (CSD-13) took place from 11-22 April 2005, at the UN headquar-
ters in New York. CSD-13 was the second session to be held since the new
multi-year programme of work was adopted at CSD-11 in 2003. The new
work programme restructured CSD’s work on the basis of two-year Imple-
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mentation Cycles, with each cycle comprised of a Review Year and a Poli-
cy Year focused on a thematic cluster of issues. Building on the outcomes
of CSD-12 (the Review Year of the first cycle), CSD-13 focused on policies
and options to expedite the implementation of commitments in the areas of
water, sanitation and human settlements, as contained in Agenda 21, the
Programme for the Further Implementation of Agenda 21, the Johannes-
burg Plan of Implementation (JPOI) and the Millennium Declaration.

During the first week of CSD-13, delegates convened for interactive dis-
cussions on water, sanitation and human settlements, and heard regional
perspectives and input from representatives of UN agencies and other
intergovernmental organisations (IGOs), Major Groups and others. During
the second week, ministers and senior officials participated in a high-level
segment, delivering statements and engaging in discussions with Major
Groups, UN agencies and NGOs. Partnerships Fairs, Learning Centres
and numerous side events were also held throughout the two-week ses-
sion.

Delegates negotiated CSD-13’s main outcome document, intended to
identify policy decisions on practical measures and options to expedite im-
plementation of commitments on water, sanitation and human settlements.
Working from a draft text prepared by CSD-13 Chair John Ashe, delegates
engaged in negotiations on this text and its subsequent revisions through-
out the remainder of the session.

The inner-city regeneration programme has its genesis in the Comprehen-
sive Plan, and seeks to redress spatial disparities brought about by past
planning practices. Subsequent to this project having been placed on the
operational plan of the Directorate, it has been subsumed as part of the
work on Inclusionary Zoning, driven by the Directorate: National Housing
Programmes.

Farm workers are currently by and large excluded from the benefits of the
housing subsidy scheme. Given the tenuous conditions under which many
farm-workers and dwellers live, the assistance to farm workers and dwell-
ers in collaboration with land owners remains a very important housing
need that requires urgent attention. To this end, and, on the basis of initial
consultations, a draft policy has been developed and finalised for approval
subsequent to rigorous consultation via the Rural Housing Task Team. It is
anticipated during the second half of the next financial year, a Rural Hous-
ing summit will be held during which an enhanced Rural Housing policy will
be developed.

The department during the year under review commenced with planning
for the establishment of the special purpose vehicle to deal with accelera-
tion of the release of suitably located land for human settlement develop-
ments. Coupled with the agreements reached and entered into with local
government this will assist in addressing the slow down in hosing delivery
because of land problems. It further will assist in building non-racial neigh-
bourhood in the cities.
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In South Africa a large number of pilot and demonstration projects in the
field of energy efficient (low-cost) housing have been implemented in the
past. By means of these projects the technical feasibility of energy efficient
housing has been demonstrated, although none of the projects has been
properly monitored and evaluated to assess the actual reduction in energy
consumption. Mainstreaming of these energy efficiency technologies how-
ever, has not taken place, thus the initiation of this project with the assist-
ance of DANIDA funding. To this end, a project proposal was forwarded for
approval timeously. However, owing to changing policy imperatives within
the Department, the project has needed to be redesigned. DANIDA funding
will now be ploughed into the N2 Gateway Pilot Project, specifically, looking
at integrating energy efficient practices.

The lack of integrated development continues to be identified as one of
housing’s strategic gaps, and is seen as a contributing factor to the unco-
ordinated development of settlements, and the decline in the number of
housing units being built. In response, a Model for the Alignment of Hous-
ing Sector Plans within IDPs has been developed and approved to provide
the Department with the optimal approach with regards to Integrated De-
velopment Plans for the next five-year planning cycle.

Within the recently approved Comprehensive Plan, secondary emphasis
has been placed on environmentally-sound housing development practic-
es. With this in mind, the Department considers it prudent to prescribe mini-
mum energy and water efficient interventions in the Housing Programme.
To this end, the guidelines have been provided and are to be subsumed as
part of the work of the revision of the National Housing Code.

The Department was approached by Food and Trees for Africa (FTFA)
for funding certain of their programmes. While the department endorsed
the work of FTFA, it was unable to lend financial assistance to their work.
This interaction, however, initiated the drafting of a policy piece on Urban
Greening for the Department. In this regard, a Terms of Reference has
already been prepared. However, the project has been held in abeyance
owing to other Directorate priorities, and will be carried over to the next
financial year.

The Department rationalised the requirements for separate multi year hous-
ing development plans for each provincial housing department. This was
achieved through the enhancement of the strategic planning framework
instituted by National Treasury into a housing focussed plan

The Department also developed a comprehensive set of templates to as-
sist provinces to compile the required strategic plans. National Treasury
approved the reworked strategic planning framework and the revised plan-
ning dispensation was launched through a comprehensive capacity build-
ing process comprising eleven workshops, involving provincial housing
official, municipal officials, municipal councillors and representatives from
SALGA.
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The new planning dispensation will be implemented with affect from 1 April
2006 and the provincial housing departments will commence planning dur-
ing 2006 for the 2007/2008 financial year.

It is envisaged that a National Housing Development plan will be devel-
oped and submitted to the Minister of Housing by October 2006, after the
provincial housing departments will have submitted their required annual
housing development plans to the Department.

An innovative housing programme for the creation of higher density resi-
dential housing stock was developed and finalised. The draft programme
is individual ownership based and targets specific residential restructuring
zone in inner city areas. The programme will also support the broader
urban restructuring objectives of Government which comprise inner city
regeneration, rental housing provision in well located areas, the diversifi-
cation of tenure options available under the National Housing Programme
and the integration of communities, both socially and economically. Being
private rental provision oriented, the programme will now be subject to a
comprehensive rental market research initiative.

This programme is mainly focussed on children who lost both their guard-
ians through death and who are currently destitute. It is foreseen that the
programme might provide relief in a variety of ways ranging from commu-
nity based projects to institutionalised care facilities. As a result of various
factors the funds for this project were reprioritised in favour of more urgent
initiatives and as a result a project will be undertaken and financed during
2006/7 financial year.

A need for intervention into the low cost private rental market has been
identified and the department envisaged the development of proposals to
formulise backyard rental housing. The initial stages of the project would
have entailed market research to determine the actual need, potential and
impact of any proposed interventions. At project approval stage, a simi-
lar private sector initiative through the FINMARK Trust was launched and
the department agreed to participate in that exercise and not to launch
a similar investigation. The findings of the FINMARK Trust investigation
have been made available at the end of 2005. The Department will take
the findings into account as part of a comprehensive rental market evalu-
ation project to determine the current rental market environment, demand,
supply and possible interventions that could be considered. The further
development of the project will be held in abeyance until the results of the
evaluation project are known.

Investigations into the application of the current 15% variation of the hous-
ing subsidy quantum to cater for extraordinary development conditions and
precautionary measures revealed that the current model was not sufficient.
It was also found that it was misused.

The Department developed a comprehensive manual that addresses all
the extraordinary development conditions in the country and that proposes
the amounts required to institute precautionary measures to ensure the de-
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livery of durable housing products. The Manual has been completed and
submitted for final approval by Housing: MINMEC. The Manual will replace
the current 15% variation model once finally approved.

The current National Housing Code was published on 10 October 2000.
Since then a number of new National Housing Programmes have been
introduced as well as substantial adjustments to the provisions of the pre-
scripts in the Code.

Housing: MINMEC thus decided that the Code must be updated and re-
placed with a new policy document. The Department developed a project
outline for the replacement of the Code as well as a framework for the man-
agement of the transitional period, leading up to the publication of the new
policy document. It is envisaged that this project will be completed during
the financial year 2006/7.

The Minister of Housing instructed the Department in collaboration with the
National Home Builders Registration Council (NHBRC) to formulate propo-
sals on the introduction of new housing typologies to be financed through
the National Housing programme. The NHBRC tabled comprehensive pro-
posals. These designs comprised three basic house types with three differ-
ent floor layouts and sizes as well as a variety of finishing levels.

Based on these proposals a definition of adequate housing to be delivered
through the Housing Subsidy Scheme was developed. These proposals
were linked to cost implications linked to delivery requirements. Based on
the cost implications of the proposals, it was decided to recommend only
one house type to Housing: MINMEC for consideration. Housing: MINMEC
decided that a special task Team be established to formalise a position and
negotiate additional funding allocation to finance the new typology. The
proposals will, therefore, be considered and concluded during the 2006
financial year.

The Department developed a programme to align the application of hous-
ing subsidies with the benefits available under the Labour Tenants Strategy
administered by the Department of Land Affairs. The programme was final-
ised and has been submitted for final approval to Housing; MINMEC. The
programme will provide access to housing subsidies to persons that will
benefit from the Labour Tenant Strategy. The latter programme provides
for access to agriculture land in ownership or some other form of secure
tenure as well as access to agriculture infrastructure. The Housing Sub-
sides Scheme will finance residential infrastructure and house construc-
tion. The programme provides for a structured coordinated planning proc-
ess to ensure that funding and planning priorities are aligned, essential for
project execution planning.

During the 2004-2005 financial year the Bill was drafted and the Bill, Cabi-
net memorandum and supporting documents were sent off by the Direc-
torate during January 2005. The draft Bill's main objective was to align
the Housing Act, 1997 with the provisions of the Division of Revenue Act
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(DORA) and the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). However, ap-
proval of the Bill is awaited and during the year under review a Housing
Second Amendment Bill was drafted. The main objectives of which were to
amend sections 10A and 10B of the Act (relating to the sale and alienation
of state subsidised houses) and to expand on the provisions regarding the
accreditation of Municipalities in the Act because, of the requirement that
departments could only introduce no more than four (4) Bills.

The Housing Amendment Bill and Housing Second Amendment Bill which
were collapsed into the Housing Amendment Bill were previously prepared
separately but, they are now collapsed into the Housing Second Amend-
ment Bill 2006. It is anticipated that the Bill will be introduced to Parliament
during 2006.

The Bill seeks to provide greater clarity on the interpretation of certain
provisions of the principal Act. It further attempts to strengthen the rights
of landowners, particularly where an illegal invasion occurs and invaders
seek to profit from such occupation.

The Bill was tabled in Parliament as Bill 11 of 2005 but, was later held in
abeyance by the Portfolio Committee on Housing for further discussion
and work. The main concern of the Portfolio Committee was that the Bill
should be aligned with other eviction legislation administered by the De-
partment of Land Affairs, namely, the Land Reform (Labour Tenants) Act,
1996 and the Extension of Security of Tenure Act, 1997. A joint task team
was established between officials in the Department of Land Affairs and the
Department of Housing.

Since the Task Team was established in October 2005 several more amend-
ments have been effected and the eviction processes in the Bill have been
aligned with the other eviction legislation administered by the Department
of Land Affairs. The Task Team will finalise its work in May 2006 and it is an-
ticipated that the Bill will be resubmitted to Parliament shortly thereafter.

The Bill which was submitted to Cabinet and subsequently published for
public comment was revised in the light of comments received before the
period under review. The amendments seek to address problems encoun-
tered with the interpretation and implementation of certain provisions as
well as to devolve more powers to the National Home Builders Registra-
tion Council (NHBRC), specifically with regard to the granting of exemp-
tions under the Act. Further extensive consultations took place with officials
from the NHBRC during the year under review and a home builder grading
system was inserted into the Bill. It is anticipated that the draft Bill will be
submitted to Cabinet during the first half of 2006 and introduced to Parlia-
ment.

These amendments to the Regulations are necessary to align the regula-
tions with proposed amendments to the Act, particularly those relating to a
grading system for home builders. The regulations were drafted timeously
and sent to the State Law Advisers for scrutiny. However, the State Law
Advisers advised that they were not prepared to look at the regulations
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until the proposed amendments to the Act had been finalised. The target,
therefore, could not be met pending the unfolding of this process.

The draft amendment Bill which was drafted before the beginning of the
year under review had to be revised to include additional amendments per-
taining to the enforcement of rulings of Rental Housing Tribunals. These
additional amendments necessitated extensive consultation with the De-
partment of Justice as well as with certain Rental Housing Tribunals. Other
than enforcement issues, the amendment Bill seeks to clarify certain provi-
sions which have given rise to difficulties of interpretation and implementa-
tion.

During the year under review the draft Bill was amended to align its pro-
visions with the revised Social Housing Policy. The Bill, together with a
Cabinet Memorandum and supporting documents was drafted and sent
through for processing.

These regulations have been outsourced and are being prepared in paral-
lel with the work being undertaken on the new Social Housing Bill. How-
ever, the regulations can only be promulgated once the Social Housing
Bill has been promulgated which is expected towards the end of 2006 or
beginning of 2007.

The Less Formal Township Establishment Act was promulgated in 1991
and many of the designation notices which were published by Administra-
tors in the pre-1994 government required amendment or withdrawal, due
to these circumstances some of the designation notices have become in-
appropriate for the current urgent needs for housing development. The
Amendment Bill, Cabinet Memorandum and supporting documents have
been processed for promulgation. Cabinet approval has since been ob-
tained.

The Bill was originally included in the work of the Memorandum of Agree-
ment entered into between the Department of Housing and the CSIR dated
31 May 2005. The project was delayed for a considerable period as the
Memorandum of Agreement was in the process of finalisation. At the end
of 2005 it was decided that the project should not form part of the scope
of work of the CSIR. The project will commence in the following financial
year.

There has been a lengthy delay due to the Office of Disclosure (established
under the Home Loan and Mortgage Disclosure Act) not being operational.
The target could, therefore, not be met. However, towards the end of 2005
the Office of Disclosure appointed a Director and the Consultants finalised
the Regulations in February 2006. The Regulations still have to be work-
shopped with stakeholders and it is anticipated that it will be promulgated
around the middle of 2006.
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The consultants completed their report several months late due to illness
of the main consultant and because of a lengthier than expected consulta-
tion process. However, the comprehensive and lengthy two volume report
was received by March 2006 and is being scrutinised for submission to the
Minister with recommendations. The Report will also be fed into the work
of the Committee on the Review of Legislation.

Research

During the year the Research focus was on unpacking the implications
of the new plan and developing an understanding of the research needs
which inform policy and programme development planning for the new plan.
The new plan required a strong research support base as it introduced a
dynamic shift in the development of sustainable human settlements. The
yield for this process is the development of the National Research Agenda
which will be launched during the 2006/07 financial year. The research
agenda is a confluence of a number of research interventions including
the International Housing Research Seminar (IHRS), the African Ministe-
rial Conference on Housing and Urban Development (AMCHUD) and dis-
cussions on the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) which took place
during the year.

In line with the need to foster research networks and develop systems
for information, knowledge development and sharing, the Chief Directo-
rate also focused on the development of the research website to facilitate
the research networks within South Africa, the developing countries of the
South including Africa and broadly within the international research com-
munity. The website is now operational.

The research strategic plan for 2005/06 provides research commitments
for the Chief Directorate. Despite a number of difficulties in implementing
some of these commitments, the Chief Directorate managed to complete
various research projects managed both internally and in collaboration with
other research stake holders.









-















Programme 3: Programme Management

Purpose

Programme Management manages national housing and human settle-
ment programmes to enable, support and promote the implementation of
housing and human settlement projects. The Programme consists of three
sub-programmes, namely National Housing Programmes, Capacity Build-
ing and Special Programmes Support.

Measurable objective

To increase access to and improve the delivery of adequate housing in sus-
tainable human settlements by effectively providing officials with systems,
knowledge, skills, guidance and funding.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent Output

National Housing Programmes

The activities of the sub-programme National Housing Programmes for
the year under review focused on developing new and enhancing exist-
ing housing subsidy scheme mechanisms and policy, in order to further
support housing delivery as envisaged in the Comprehensive Plan for the
Development of Sustainable Human Settlements.

Individual subsidies

Individual subsidies provide qualifying beneficiaries with access to hous-
ing subsidies to acquire ownership of serviced stands. This subsidy allows
beneficiaries to enter into house building contracts, or to purchase existing
improved residential properties.

Project-linked subsidies

This housing subsidy mechanism enables qualifying households to access
complete residential units, which are developed within approved project-
linked housing subsidy projects for ownership by the beneficiaries. Since
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its inception in 1994, 2 037 228 households benefited from 3 971 projects
undertaken throughout the country. Within the period 1 April 2005 to
31 March 2006, 321 housing projects were approved.

This housing subsidy mechanism has been designed to afford previous
beneficiaries of serviced stands financed by the previous housing dispen-
sation [including the Independent Development Trust’s site and service
schemes] the opportunity to acquire houses. A top-up subsidy of R 18
792.00 to construct a house is granted to beneficiaries with a household
income, not exceeding R1 500.00 per month. Since the initiation of this
mechanism in June 1995 and up till 31 March 2006, a total of 271 297
subsidies were approved.

This subsidy is available to qualifying institutions to enable them to create
affordable housing stock for persons who qualify for housing subsidies. This
housing subsidy mechanism provides R29 450.00 to qualifying beneficiar-
ies whose monthly income may not exceed R3 500. The subsidy is paid to
approved institutions to provide subsidised housing on deed of sale, rental
or rent to buy options, on condition that the beneficiaries are not compelled
to pay the full purchase price or take transfer of the house within the first
four years of receipt of the subsidy. Institutions must also invest capital in
the projects from their own resources. Since its inception on 1 December
1995 until 31 March 2006, 68 900 subsidies were approved.

This programme provides an alternative option to defaulting borrowers who
were three months in arrears on the 31 August 1997, and where the option
of rehabilitating these mortgage loans was not affordable. This alterna-
tive provides an opportunity for qualifying beneficiaries to obtain affordable
housing with the assistance of a housing subsidy. A person who is eligi-
ble for relocation assistance is required to enter into a Relocation Agree-
ment in order to relocate to more affordable housing. Since June 1995 until
31 March 2006, a total of 10 109 beneficiaries received relocation assist-
ance subsidies.

This benefit scheme promotes home ownership to tenants of pre-1994
State-financed rental stock, including formal housing and serviced sites. In
terms of this scheme, tenants receive a maximum discount of R7 500.00
on the selling price of the property. Where the discount amount equals or
exceeds the purchase price or loan balance, the property is transferred
free of any further capital charges. Approximately 1 000 000 households
qualify for assistance under the Discount Benefit Scheme and up to
30 February 2006, a total of 552 007 beneficiaries have participated in the
Scheme. This Scheme was superseded by the Enhanced Extended Dis-
count Benefit Scheme from 1 December 2005.

In terms of Section 14(9) of the Housing Act, 1997 (Act No. 107 of 1997) as
amended, the Minister of Housing instituted a national housing programme
to phase out housing subsidies and to normalise the housing environment
in respect of housing stock created under the previous housing dispensa-
tion. A detailed Phasing Out Programme was developed by the Department
and approved by Housing MINMEC during 2000. In order to stimulate and
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facilitate the transfer of public housing stock to qualifying occupants this
programme was superseded by the Enhanced Extended Discount Benefit
Scheme from 1 December 2005

The principles and objectives of the Phasing Out Programme and the Dis-
count Benefit Scheme policies were found to be no longer adequate to deal
with a wide range of complexities. A new policy framework, criteria, con-
ditions and implementation processes and procedures for an Enhanced
Extended Discount Benefit Scheme [EEDBS] were therefore put in place
from 1 December 2005 to support decisions made regarding the transfer
of pre-1994 housing stock. The EEDBS supersedes all other policies and
implementation guidelines relating to the Discount Benefit Scheme and the
Phasing Out Programme. The policy intent of the EEDBS is to stimulate
and facilitate the transfer of public housing stock to qualifying occupants,
by using subsidisation up to the full prevailing individual housing subsidy
amount.

This scheme was implemented on 1 June 1982 to promote home owner-
ship and stimulate access to credit for the purchase of a house and/or
the building of new dwellings. The FTHBISS was aimed at subsidising the
interest payable on mortgage loans over the first seven years of the loan
period. With the implementation of the individual subsidy mechanism of the
Housing Subsidy Scheme on 5 June 1995, the FTHBISS was closed for
any further applications. Subsidies payable in terms of the FTHBISS were
reduced, on an annual basis, and have been phased out over a seven-year
period. An average of 33 remaining beneficiaries was making use of the
benefit of the FTHBISS and an amount of R971.99 had been transferred to
financial institutions in terms of the Scheme. The Government’s obligations
towards approved participating beneficiaries ended in June 2005.

This subsidy is available to beneficiaries who only enjoy functional ten-
ure rights to the land they occupy. Land which qualifies for Informal Land
Rights belongs to the State and is governed by traditional authorities. The
subsidies are only available on a project basis and implementing agents
support beneficiaries. Beneficiaries also have the right to decide on how
to use their subsidies: for service provision, for building a house, or for a
combination of these two options. Since inception of this programme in
November 1999 until 31 March 2006, 128 projects, with a total of 121 678
subsidies were approved.

This process supports households who wish to enhance their housing
subsidies by building or personally supervising the building of their own
homes. This process is a method of accessing the project-linked, project-
linked consolidation, institutional, or rural subsidies, as well as technical
and other forms of assistance in the low-income house-building process.
Since the inception of this programme in 1998 until 31 December 2006,
769 projects, with a total of 634 790 beneficiaries were approved.

Deregistration, or the cancellation of registration of transfer, refers to a pro-
cess whereby a name of a property owner is removed from the title deed
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and the Deeds Register of the Chief Registrar of Deeds. The procedures
in the case of government housing subsidy beneficiaries that are missing
or are unable to take physical occupation and where the properties need
to be deregistered in the office of the Chief Registrar of Deeds were ap-
proved by the Committee: Heads of Housing Departments in May 2005 for
implementation from 1 July 2005.

In order to prevent the repetitive use of dependents names by applicants to
access a housing subsidy the Committee: Heads of Housing Departments
approved in May 2005, for implementation from 1 July 2005, a procedure
whereby a financial dependent is defined and, applicants must now list all
their financial dependents and prescribed documents must accompany the
amended application form.

In May 2000 Housing MINMEC, approved a policy revision framework to
realign the process of housing development within the Housing Subsidy
Scheme with the procurement prescripts applicable to organs of State.
Since this task represented a substantial amount of work and it was ac-
cepted that disruption in the housing delivery process should be minimised,
a phased approach to implement the Procurement Regime was adopted.
The introduction of procurement guidelines for all project related subsidies
were approved and enhanced guidelines for the People’s Housing Process
Programme have been introduced in September 2005. The development
of procurement guidelines in respect of the remaining housing subsidy
mechanisms and Programmes is under way.

An investigation was undertaken into the impact of the current subsidy dis-
pensation on women, following which, administrative measures to protect
women were approved for implementation from 1 April 2005. In future, all
subsidised houses will be registered in both the spouses/partners names.

In order to address dysfunctionalities in development strategies and to broa-
den the level of discretion and options to enable a more needs orientated
approach towards housing development initiatives, Housing MINMEC ap-
proved, in September 2005, Implementation Guidelines for a Phased Hou-
sing Development Approach. This approach will allow, Greenfield housing
development projects, undertaken by means of the project linked subsidy
mechanism, the installation of services, as Phase 1 of a project, and the
construction of the top structure, as Phase 2. The subsidy amounts ap-
plicable to these phases are determined by the date on which a specific
phase is approved.

Numerous existing housing projects became blocked due to financial, legal
or other bona fide reasons. In November 2005 Housing MINMEC approved
procedures whereby an increase in the historic subsidy amount, ie. initial
project proposal and specifications relating to the level of services and top-
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structure, to an amount equal to the prevailing subsidy amount, can be
used to unblock housing projects. All identified blocked housing projects
must however be completed by no later than 31 March 2008.

The NHBRC, through the Housing Consumer Protection Measures Act (Act
95 of 1998) has a mandate to provide warranty protection against structural
defects in new homes. The NHBRC’s Warranty Scheme currently includes
houses built in terms of the following subsidy mechanisms and/or process
namely:

» Consolidation subsidy;

e Project-linked subsidy

* Relocation Assistance;

* Developer Driven Individual subsidy [Subsidy mechanism phased out]
¢ Non-Credit Linked Individual subsidies; and the

* People’s Housing Process (PHP), up to the project enrolment stage.

The quantum of the subsidy amount was increased with effect from 1 April
2005. This increase, based on the Building Cost Index (BCI) available from
the Bureau of Economic Research (BER) is industry-specific and is consid-
ered to be an accurate method of escalating building costs. The increase
will ensure that a housing subsidy will meet the inflationary demands made
on building material, and will be able to finance a serviced stand and the
construction cost of a 30m? house.

In order to regulate the voted allocation of an Operational Capital Budget
Programme funding structure that was included in the Division of Revenue
Act of 14 April 2005, as part of the Integrated Housing and Human Settle-
ment Development Grant funding application, Housing MINMEC approved
Guidelines for the Application of the Operational Expenditure Budget to be
implemented on 1 November 2005.

Township establishment difficulties, which relate to the transfer and registra-
tion processes at Deeds Offices, hampered progress to the next milestone
of the housing delivery process. Initially, approval was granted on the basis
that, in the case where townships have been proclaimed on State land,
Progress Payment No. 4 (transfer of land) may be made before Progress
Payment No. 5 (completion of top structure). Subject to specific milestones,
within the framework of the Public Sector Finance Management Act (Act
No.1 of 1999) approval was granted by the Committee: Heads of Housing
Departments, in August 2005 that progress payments may now be made in
any sequence in terms of the New Progress Payment System.

Following Cabinet’s approval, and through the Department’s subsidy pro-
gramme, a new mechanism was developed to subsidise the down pay-
ments for finance by first time home buyers. Housing MINMEC approved
that the subsequent Housing Finance-linked Individual Subsidy Programme
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can be implemented from October 2005 and that it can be used by first
time home buyers of new (primary market) or existing (secondary market)
stock, who earn a household income of between R3 501 and R7 000. The
benefit of this subsidy programme is that the borrower’s loan-to-value ratio
is reduced, which then reduces the lender’s assessment of risk, which in
turn increases the incentive for the lender to lend.

Various Task Team meetings held to discuss detailed redrafted processes,
procedures, forms and rules have led to the revision of the Technical Speci-
fications and, the reformulation of the policy intent of this Programme. Due
to stakeholder inputs a new draft document was discussed in March 2006
and the target date for finalisation has been moved to July 2006. The Pro-
gramme’s name will be changed to the Community Residential Units Pro-
gramme (CRUP) to include pre-1994 un-saleable rental stock. The main
objective of the CRUP will be to transform old public sector hostels into
affordable and sustainable community residential units for qualifying resi-
dents.

The fast tracking solution that was approved by Housing MINMEC, for im-
plementation on 1 November 2005, will assist families who find themselves
in risk-prone areas such as unacceptable unhealthy conditions in informal
settlements, locations below flood lines, along railway lines, congested
backyards, condemned buildings, etc.

In the reporting year ten housing subsidy mechanisms evaluation indicator
questionnaires were drafted. Four of these were discussed at a Task Team
meeting and the rest of the questionnaires are now amended in accord with
the recommendations. Due to the urgency of other projects the six remain-
ing subsidy mechanisms questionnaires will be drafted in the second quar-
ter of the 2006 financial year. The evaluation process will then be taken
forward by the Monitoring and Evaluation component of the Department.

Special Programmes Support

Achievements

The HSRP, which seeks to identify and address the imbalances and dys-
functionalities in human settlement patterns, was managed on an ongoing
basis. The HSRP aims to assist in improving the quality of human set-
tlements through the identification and correction of imbalances and dys-
functionalities in such human settlements in a quest for more efficient and
productive human settlement patterns. The focus of the programme is on
the existing residential environment. In addition to dysfunctionality, it also
strives to address the adverse physical conditions or nuances that detract
from the broad concept to adequate housing and which are not conducive
to wholesome and balanced living environments.
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During the 2005/06 financial year R24, 396 million was made available by
the Division of Revenue Act to finance projects approved in terms of the
Programme. Eight projects within 4 provinces (Gauteng, Western Cape,
Free State and Limpopo) were funded with this allocation.

In total the HSRP was used to provide funding to 136 active projects (128
multi year projects from previous financial years plus the 8 projects funded
in the current financial year) with a total allocation (roll overs plus the cur-
rent year allocation) of R172,557million. The 136 active projects consisted
of fifty eight engineering infrastructure projects which strive to improve the
physical conditions of the urban environment, twenty nine planning or re-
planning projects which facilitate positive spatial re-ordering, thirty three
economic or local economic development projects which encourage partic-
ipation in economic activity and sixteen social facility projects which stimu-
late the development of wholesome and balanced living environments.

Forty-four projects or 32% of the active projects have been successfully
completed in the 2005/06 financial year. A R102, 351 million of the total
R172, 557 allocation was spent and most of the remaining 92 multi-year
projects are in an advanced stage of implementation. Of the 136 active
projects 30 are located in Rural Development Nodes and 29 are located in
the Urban Renewal Nodes.

In view of the fact that various elements supported through the HSRP Pilot
Programme are being rolled out as part of the Comprehensive Plan for the
Development of Sustainable Human Settlements and thus, funded through
the Integrated Housing and Human Settlement Grant it was decided to
phase out of the Human Settlement Redevelopment Programme. The Hu-
man Settlement Redevelopment Programme will thus, not receive addi-
tional funding in coming financial years and once the active projects have
been finalised the Programme will come to an end.

Presidential Pilot Project on Rental Housing (PPPRH)

The aim of the Job Summit Pilot Project on Rental Housing is to facilitate
the large-scale delivery of rental housing for targeted income groups as
part of the integrated development of selected urban areas using the pri-
vate sector to finance, develop and manage such Programmes.

During a mid term review in the first quarter of 2004 it was recommended
that the programme be comprehensively restructured to accommodate the
PPP delivery option. A revised Job Summit Programme Framework and
proposal call process incorporating the Public Private Partnership (PPP)
procurement methodology, was developed in October 2004. However, the
Comprehensive Plan was approved by Cabinet in September 2004 and the
revised Social Housing Policy was adopted in June 2005. In light of these
policy documents the 2004 Job Summit Programme Framework needs to
be reviewed and aligned with the current National Housing Policy. To this
end a draft position document was prepared by the NHFC and presented
to the Department in September 2005. During this meeting a need to do
further work to align the Programme, whilst retaining PPP requirements,
with the social housing framework and pilots to be undertaken in terms of
the approved social housing policy was identified.

Subsequently the NHFC did complete additional work to align the Pro-
gramme with the Comprehensive Plan and the approved Social Housing
Policy. On the basis of the revised programme framework the Department
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requested the NHFC to commence with the implementation of phase 2 of
the Programme provided that the National Treasury must approve the im-
plementation of the Phase 2 roll out Programme. All these amendments
to the programme to align it with the Comprehensive Plan for the Develop-
ment of Sustainable Human Settlements and the social housing policy thus,
caused the delay in the implementation of Phase Il of the Programme.

Phase Il of the Job Summit Pilot Project on Rental Housing has, however,
commenced in the fourth quarter of the 2005/06 financial year. The NHFC
procured the services of consultants to assist with the development of:

» Aproposal call for phase Il that can be issued to municipalities.

» Athree year business plan for the implementation of the programme.

» Conducting a Pre-Feasibility assessment on short listed projects/muni-
cipalities.

Itis anticipated that the scope of work outlined above will be finalised within
the first six months of the 2006/07 financial year.

Social Housing Programme

In June 2005, Housing Minmec approved the Social Housing Policy which
is intended to fill the policy vacuum in the sector and to address key chal-
lenges, with the specific focus and objective of contributing to the national
priority of reorganising South African society by addressing structural,
economic, social and spatial dysfunctionalities. The Policy contributes
very strongly towards the achievement of urban restructuring and renewal
through integration. Hence it impacts positively on urban economies by
providing rental accommodation, managed by Social Housing Institutions,
close to economic opportunities, for persons in the lower economic bracket.
It also aims to improve the overall functioning of the housing environment
and the urban rental housing sector by providing a wider range of housing
options for the poor.

Capacity Building

During the year under review, the Directorate Capacity Building implement-
ed the operational plan as approved. The following are achievements over
and above those that were planned for this is as a result of training work
that was done as a result of policies and implementation guidelines ap-
proved in year 2004-2005.

Housing Consumer Education was piloted in the context of project consoli-
date and the establishment of housing units within provinces and munici-
palities. In line with the signed social contract with industry and financial
institutions an MOU on consumer education was signed for collaborative
work. A radio programme, Homey2Homey was developed and aired with
six SABC radio stations, so as to promote access to housing knowledge,
subsidies, property preservation and housing as an investment asset. The
broadcasts were done in English; Afrikaans; isiZulu; SeSotho, TshiVenda
and XiTsonga. The Housing Consumer Education Framework has been
enhanced to be in line with the Comprehensive Plan for the Development
of Sustainable Human Settlements.
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Terms of reference to conduct a Skills Audit and capacity requirements
for municipalities were developed and submitted for approval. The plan-
ned Skills audit was not authorised, as a result it has been deferred to
2006/07.

Housing sector specific Call Centre training was conducted during the pe-
riod under review; the training programme incorporated elements of the
Housing Consumer Education Programme and Call Centre specific skills.
The target group was the frontline staff members who interact with custom-
ers of the Department on a daily basis.

Accredited Sanitation, Health & Hygiene training modules were developed
and incorporated with the Housing Consumer Education training pro-
gramme. The aim of the programme is to respond to the WSSD recom-
mendations and AMCHUD recommendations on urbanisation.

In pursuit of its monitoring role the Directorate held four (quarterly) monitor-
ing sessions.

Provinces conducted various training and development courses in line with
their approved Capacity Building Business Plans. A total of 31 courses
were presented and attended by 3 455 participants consisting of officials,
councilors and consumers.

The Directorate coordinated a national Municipal Road-show on Housing
Sector Integrated Development Plans as part of a new planning dispensa-
tion for the creation of sustainable human settlements. A total of 11 provin-
cial workshops were conducted attended by 417 participants.

With a view to professionalise the housing sector under one umbrella, a
Draft Framework was developed, taking into consideration national and in-
ternational experience. This draft Framework is currently being discussed
with a variety of role players with a view to the establishment of a Housing
Professional Body in 2006/07.

During the period under review the Directorate facilitated the development
of unit standards through the Housing Standards Generating Body for an
undergraduate degree (NQF Level 6). A draft unit standard based under-
graduate degree qualification at NQF Level 6 has been developed and
is currently being discussed within the sector before submission to South
African Qualifications Authority (SAQA).

During the year under review a lack of funding led to a slow down of Hous-
ing SGB activities. The Directorate in partnership with the Housing SGB
ultimately secured funding from SAQA in March 2006 to expedite delivery
on the Housing SGB’s core business.
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In pursuit of skills development under the auspices of the Cuban Technical
Support Programme in respect of PHP, the Cuban Technicians are involved
in 228 projects across eight provinces. A total number of 37 281 hous-
ing units have been awarded to the programme for construction of which
36 614 units have been completed.

In addition, as part of a skills development process, 51 officials, 885 hous-
ing beneficiaries and 324 NGO’s benefited from the Skills transfer pro-
gramme.

During the year under review three students completed their studies and
were employed by the Department. This programme was extended with
effect from 2006 and an additional 12 scholarships have been granted to
date. Students are with various institutions of higher learning.

An amount of R24, 396 million was available for transfer to four provinces
in terms of the HSRP. The transfer of funds was effected on condition that
suitable business plans were submitted and approved by the Department
of Housing. The allocation of R24,396 million was made available to hon-
our the commitments made in relation to approved projects business plans
already approved in the 2004/05 financial year. The grant funds the capital
expenditure of the projects approved in terms of the criteria of the Pro-

gramme.

Conditional Grant Total Allocation Total Transfers
Human Settlement R24,396,000 R24,396,000
Redevelopment

Programme

Province Total Allocation Total Transfers
Eastern Cape RO RO
Free State R9,475,000 R9,475,000
Gauteng R4,130,000 R4,130,000
KwaZulu-Natal RO RO
Mpumalanga RO RO
Northern Cape RO RO
Limpopo Province R1,418,000 R1,418,000
North West RO RO
Western Cape R9,373,000 R9,373,000
TOTAL R 24,396,000 R24,396,000

The Transfer of Payment Schedule was not amended during the 2005/06
financial year. As prescribed by the grant framework the funding was only
transferred to the provinces once approved business plans were in place.
No funds were retained for administrative costs.



DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2005-2006

72

BREAKING NEW GROUND IN HOUSING DELIVERY * houses * security * comfort

In the 2005/06 financial year total expenditure in terms of the HSRP
amounted to R102,351 million. The total 2005/06 allocation plus R77,955
million of the roll overs from previous financial years was thus spent. Prov-
inces generally have, however, improved upon their year on year expendi-
ture from the 2005/06 financial year. Gauteng has spent 100% of its HSRP
funding whilst Free State, Mpumalanga and North West have spent over
70% of the total allocations (current year allocations plus roll over amounts
from previous financial years). The HSRP was furthermore reviewed con-
currently with the formulation of the Comprehensive Plan for the Develop-
ment Sustainable Human Settlements of the Department of Housing within
which the Department committed itself towards achieving the broader no-
tion of sustainable human settlements and more efficient cities, towns and
regions. The projects funded through this pilot programme contributed to-
wards the mainstreaming of certain elements within the comprehensive
plan including inter alia the funding of the provision of selected social and
economic facilities and amenities.

Compliance with the conditions of the Programme is being monitored in
terms of an approved Monitoring and Reporting Framework. Despite hav-
ing this framework in place it has been difficult to monitor compliance with
the Division of Revenue Act. This was due to a lack of quality reporting in
accordance with the above framework by some Provinces. The Depart-
ment is trying to address these problems through provincial project manag-
er meetings, providing provinces with detailed monthly feedback regarding
the quality of the monthly reports and conducting provincial visits.

In addition to these interventions the Departments also requested detailed
project by project status quo reports in some provinces from the project im-
plementers to ensure that information contained in the monthly reports are
accurate and concise. These feedback processes is focused on resolving
inconsistencies in and omissions of required information. This task has,
however, been challenging in relation to some provinces as the provincial
project managers are changed regularly with the end result being that on-
going training and capacitation needs to occur to ensure that the required
information is submitted. In accordance with the grant framework no fund-
ing not committed in terms of approved business plans was transferred to
the Provinces throughout the course of the financial year.

Despite the above mentioned challenges it is expected that the objectives
and outputs of the projects funded through the HSRP will progressively be
achieved as projects are finalised.



Service delivery achievements
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Sub-

programmes:

National
Housing
Programmes

Outputs

Develop an accreditation
framework and
accompanying
implementation guidelines
for municipalities to
administer National
Housing Programmes

Develop Implementation
Guidelines for the
Deregistration of Missing
Government Housing
Subsidy Beneficiaries in the
Office of the Chief Registrar
of Deeds

Develop Implementation
Guidelines for the
Prevention of the Repetitive
use of Dependents names
to access a Housing
Subsidy

Develop a Policy
Framework and
Implementation Guidelines
for an Enhanced Extended
Discount Benefit Scheme to
fast track accessing of title
deeds

Enhance Implementation
Guidelines and
Procurement Regime for
housing delivered through
the People’s Housing
Process

Develop Implementation
Guidelines for Housing
Finance Linked Individual
Subsidies for beneficiaries
in the R3 501 - R7 000
income category

Develop Implementation
Guidelines for the
application of the
Operational Expenditure
Budget in support of the
implementation of National
and Provincial Housing
Programmes

Develop a Policy
Framework and
Implementation Guidelines
for Fast Tracking a Housing
Solution for People living in
Areas of Stress

Output performance
measures/service
delivery indicators

Housing MINMEC approved
accreditation framework
and implementation
guidelines

Committee: Heads of
Housing Departments
approved Implementation
Guidelines

Housing MINMEC approved
Implementation Guidelines

Housing MINMEC approved
Policy Framework and
Implementation Guidelines

Housing MINMEC approved
Implementation Guidelines
and Procurement Regime

Housing MINMEC approved
Implementation Guidelines

Housing MINMEC approved
Implementation Guidelines

Housing MINMEC approved
Policy Framework and
Implementation Guidelines
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Actual performance against target

Target

The evaluation process
will be taken forward

by the Monitoring and
Evaluation component of
the Department

Framework and
accompanying
implementation guidelines
finalised in August 2005
with minor amendments

Detailed Implementation
Guidelines submitted to
the Committee: Heads of
Housing Departments and
approved in May 2005

Implementation
Guidelines submitted to
the Committee: Heads of
Housing Departments and
approved in May 2005

Policy Framework

and accompanying
Implementation Guidelines
finalised in November 2005
and approved by Housing
MINMEC in December
2005

Implementation Guidelines
and Procurement Regime
finalised in March 2005
Due to stakeholder inputs
Housing MINMEC’s
approval was obtained

in September 2005 for
implementation

Implementation Guidelines
approved by Housing
MINMEC in October 2005

Implementation Guidelines
finalised in October

2005 and approved by
Housing MINMEC for
implementation from

1 November 2005

Policy Framework

and Implementation
Guidelines approved by
Housing MINMEC for
implementation from

1 November 2005

Actual

The evaluation process
will be taken forward

by the Monitoring and
Evaluation component of
the Department

Framework and
accompanying
implementation guidelines
finalised in August 2005
with minor amendments

Detailed Implementation
Guidelines submitted to
the Committee: Heads of
Housing Departments and
approved in May 2005

Implementation
Guidelines submitted to
the Committee: Heads of
Housing Departments and
approved in May 2005

Policy Framework

and accompanying
Implementation Guidelines
finalised in November 2005
and approved by Housing
MINMEC in December
2005

Implementation Guidelines
and Procurement Regime
finalised in March 2005
Due to stakeholder inputs
Housing MINMEC’s
approval was obtained

in September 2005 for
implementation

Implementation Guidelines
approved by Housing
MINMEC in October 2005

Implementation Guidelines
finalised in October

2005 and approved by
Housing MINMEC for
implementation from

1 November 2005

Policy Framework

and Implementation
Guidelines approved by
Housing MINMEC for
implementation from

1 November 2005
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Purpose

Monitor the implementation and performance of national housing policy
and programmes, and evaluate and assess their impact on beneficiaries,
the environment and on the roles of the three spheres of government.

Measurable Objectives

Disburse and monitor funds for housing delivery in compliance with the
Public Finance Management Act (1999) and Division of Revenue Act re-
quirements, to ensure that expenditure matches annual delivery commit-
ments.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Recent outputs

During the financial year 2005/06 the directorate achieved the following
through its sub-directorates:

The Sub-Directorate continued with the intervention to align reporting
housing statistical information in various publications on both national and
provincial levels in collaboration with National Treasury and various meet-
ings were held with Provincial Treasuries in this regard. Discussions with
all Provincial Housing Departments were held, to identify gaps or problems
areas in this regard and to implement mechanisms to address them. The
Sub-Directorate has developed and implemented verification mechanisms,
developed common reporting formats and definitions, monitored credibil-
ity level of housing information continuously with a view to target date of
31 March 2006, participated in meetings of National Treasury regarding
non-financial information, and provided housing statistical information to
relevant Government Departments, for example DWAF, National Treasury,
STATS SA as well as other institutions, the media and interested compa-
nies. The Directorate provided Minister and DPLG with non-financial infor-
mation in an agreed format for Presidential Imbizos and visits of Minister
to Provinces.

During the year under review, several studies were conducted. The study
regarding the delay in township establishment processes in Gauteng, Lim-
popo and KwaZulu-Natal was conducted and, the final report has been pro-
duced. The study to determine community participation in project planning
and implementation was also conducted and a report has been finalised to
that effect. The section also participated in the development of templates
regarding information to be included in Business plans of Provinces and
IDP’s of Local Authorities

During the 2005/2006 financial year, a study was conducted on the moni-
toring and evaluation capacity in Provincial Housing Departments and a
report has been produced. The objective of the study was to determine
the human, financial and infrastructural capacity that exists in Provincial
Housing Departments. Another study was conducted on the impact of na-
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tional housing programmes on beneficiaries in Northern Cape, Free State,
Eastern Cape, Western Cape and KwaZulu-Natal

Housing Fact Sheets

The monthly Fact Sheets to March 2006 have been compiled on CD for
distribution.

Housing Development Potential

The Directorate took delivery of the final version of the digital Housing At-
lases.

Urbanisation Study

The urbanisation study was concluded and the report was submitted to
the department. A launch workshop has been scheduled for 11 April 2006
to present the findings. A CD version of the Final Urbanisation Report, to-
gether with additional research resources has been compiled for distribu-
tion at the launch.

Information Handbook

The “Information Handbook”, which is an attempt to make information more
readily available to the Minister and Senior Management, was updated with
additional statistics.

Spatial (GIS) viewer

A national spatial (GIS) viewer (digital) was developed using information
from our GIS warehouse. Copies of the Spatial Viewer are being distrib-
uted to officials and other users of housing related information.

AMCHUD website

The Directorate was tasked to redevelop the official AMCHUD website by
the Ministry. During this quarter new elements were added to the AMCHUD
site. Inputs from the Minister were incorporated and the official launch of
the website was in April 2006 during the Special AMCHUD Conference in
Kenya.

Other Websites

The Directorate was tasked to develop a website for PHPT and redesign
the International Housing Research website. Both initiatives were com-
pleted.

Installation Guide Integra

An installation guide for Integra was developed based on the results and
findings of the installation at a test site. The installation guide was distrib-
uted for implementation in the 9 Provincial Housing Departments.

Monitored and evaluated the performance of the construction sector indi-
cators on a quarterly basis in order to provide relevant and timeous infor-
mation to the policy sections within the Department. The intention is that
the information and analysis will assist in providing important input to the
policy formulation process, to ensure that this process is up to date with
trends in the construction sectors.
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A pilot CETA accredited training programme to support emerging contrac-
tors was initiated to provide training and qualification in various fields re-
lated to housing construction. This programme is implemented through the
National Home Builder’s Registration Council in all nine provinces with the
aim of building capacity for contractors who are involved in construction in
both the public and private sectors.

This directorate played a significant role in arranging a National Housing
Indaba at the request of the Minister to identify and get a commitment from
stakeholders to remove possible obstacles in the housing delivery process
in order to fast-track housing delivery in South Africa. This has culminated
in the signing of a Social Contract with various sectors of the home building
industry. The challenge is establishing a unit that will monitor and evaluate
implementation of the Social Contract.

Monitored and evaluated the housing finance sector and have analysed the
impact of economic indicators on housing and Government programmes.
From a study that was conducted during the year it was determined that the
major banks have designed and launched home loan products specifically
aimed at low income households, indicating the industry’s true commitment
to achieving a distribution of R42 billion to end users in response to the
Financial Sector Charter.

A review of the micro finance industry indicated that only 10% of the total
disbursements in the industry is being used for housing purposes and that
the loans are mainly used for incremental housing purposes as a result of
the small average loan size and short repayment period.

It was determined that the long and short-term industry is busy with the
development of insurance products directed at low income earners. Cer-
tain obstacles, which need to be overcome by the players in the industry to
ensure the successful implementation of these new initiatives, were high-
lighted.

An investigation into the state of employer-assisted housing schemes in
the country was commissioned. The task of providing sustainable human
settlements for the lower and middle income households is indeed a great
challenge that requires the participation of a number of role players in the
economy which included private sector employers as outlined in the Com-
prehensive Plan.

Monitored and evaluated the development finance trends on a quarterly
basis in order to provide relevant and timeous information to the policy sec-
tions within the Department. Participated in the Research conference and
the land packaging initiatives.

The appointment of the new NHBRC Council is being finalised. The review
of housing institution’s mandate in line with the new housing plan is under-
way and is posing a challenge of merging their similar functions with other
institutions. Servcon and Thubelisha’s business came to an end on the
31 March 2006. New institutions with new mandates and corporate forms
are established. The challenge is to find a suitable form for each institu-
tion.
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Purpose

The programme Housing Equity aims to eradicate discrimination and un-
fair practices to do with access to housing finance, by implementing and
administering the Home Loan and Mortgage Disclosure Act, 2000, Act 63
of 2000 and regulations through the Office of Disclosure. This report cov-
ers the activities undertaken by the Office of Disclosure during the period
1 April 2005 to 31 March 2006.

Measurable objective

Increase the level of private sector finance for affordable housing by R42
billion by 2008 ensuring that this will be achieved, through monitoring and
analysing lending practices and by supporting the development of appro-
priate instruments by lending institutions and development of appropriate
partnerships between lending institutions, government, housing support
institutions and other lenders.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Recent Output

» The draft Regulations are developed and referred for consultative pro-
cess with the Governor of the South African Reserve Bank and the Min-
ister of Finance as per legislation.

* Due to the Regulations and Compliance Manual not being finalised, the
Office could not receive, capture and analyse information to be disclo-
sed by financial institutions for preparation of the annual report to the
Minister.

Finalisation of Home Loans and Mortgage Compliance
Manual

Financial institutions have to comply in terms of the Home Loans and Mort-
gage Disclosure Act 2000 (Act 63 of 2000). The purpose of a compli-
ance manual is to specify to financial institutions the relevant information
that must be disclosed to this Office. A draft Compliance manual has been
drawn up. The Compliance Manual will be finalised once the Regulations
have been approved and gazetted.

IT System to receive data

The Home Loans and Mortgage Disclosure Act 63 of 2000 gives the Office
the mandate, amongst others to receive and analyse and to investigate
information disclosed by financial institutions. The Office of Disclosure in-
tends having an advanced electronic map programme or Geographic Infor-
mation System (GIS) comprising details of all erf/plots/sites in the country.
The office will colour code each financial institution to assist in identifying
an institution’s impact and monitor their respective investment patterns.
Such a programme will enable the Office of Disclosure to identify discrimi-
natory lending patterns by simply entering a financial institutions code and
studying its patterns.
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The electronic map programme or GIS will also be able to log onto spe-
cific areas for example a suburb, small town, residential area, metro area,
province etc. Apart from the electronic map programme there will also be
a programme that could be accessed to provide data on mortgage loans
in terms of the Act. In kick starting the process to establish a suitable IT
system, the Office had a meeting with the IT Directorate of the department
to check on capacity and programmes available to set up such a system
as desired.

Guide for Complaints Handling Procedure

In terms of the Act, financial institutions must disclose information to the De-
partment through the Office of Disclosure. However there will be instances
where members of the public are not satisfied with the manner which their
applications for home loans were handled and/or results obtained. Such
members of the public will have access to complain directly to the Office
of Disclosure.

For this purpose, a draft complaints procedure information booklet has
been completed which will be distributed to members of the public as soon
as the act is enforced. Distribution techniques could include workshops
by Provincial departments, leaflets being distributed at public areas, eg.
churches, schools, universities, post offices, governments offices and also
via vigorous campaigns. Therefore, a fully staffed Complaints Call Centre
with a toll free telephone number and an e-mail address for complaints
handling will be set up.

Appointment of Members of the Office

In terms of Section 6 of the Home Loans and Mortgage Disclosure Act, the
Office will consist of not more than 10 members appointed by the Minister.
However, due to the Regulations not being finalised timeously, this task is
on hold waiting gazetting and approval of the Regulations.

Profile of the Office of Disclosure

The Office of Disclosure has been established and prepared a draft of its
profile for informing the public about the office’s functions. However, due
to incomplete regulations, compliance manual and IT systems, a need for
additional staff and, Members of the Office appointed in line with functions
in terms of the proposed structure and legislative mandate to enable a full
complement and functional office, the profile is not finalised.

Insertion of Office’s information on departmental website

Due to incomplete regulations, compliance manual and IT systems, a need
for additional staff and Board of Directors appointed in line with functions in
terms of the proposed structure and legislative mandate the office’s infor-
mation could not be inserted on departmental website.
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Establishment of municipal help desks

Due to the Regulations and Compliance Manual not being finalised in order
to enforce the Act, the Office could not establish the help desks at identified
municipalities.

Development of Home Loans and Mortgage Regulations

In terms of Section 12 of the Home Loans and Mortgage Disclosure Act
2000 (Act 63 of 2000), the Minister of Housing must, in consultation with
the Minister of Finance and the Governor of the Reserve Bank, develop
Regulations. Once gazetted the regulations would enforce the Act and set
well defined parameters for the financial institution obligations on disclo-
sure. The Directorate Framework Legislation was responsible to oversee
that the regulations were finalised and gazetted.

Consultants were appointed to draft regulations and facilitate the consulta-
tive process. The draft regulations have been to the Office of Disclosure
for comments and way forward. The Office has commented on the regula-
tions and briefed the consultants regarding its expectations and urgency
thereof. The consultative process, ie. with the Minister of Finance and the
Governor of the Reserve Bank, took place during May - June 2006. The
Office envisaged that the Regulations would be ready for Ministerial ap-
proval and gazetted by the beginning of the second term of the financial
year, which will enable enforcement of the Act and compliance by financial
institutions.

The consultative process would be held in two phases. The first phase
would be consultation with the Minister of Finance and the Governor of the
South African Reserve Bank, while the second phase would be with the
other role-players, ie. financial institutions.

Engagement with financial institutions

This office has also been in discussions with the financial institutions
around the Financial Services Charter and the Breaking New Ground Pol-
icy on Housing Delivery. Various objectives have been set as directed by
the Financial Services Charter and the Comprehensive Plan.
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Purpose

To fund national housing and human settlement programmes in terms of
the Housing Act (1997).

Measurable Objective

Disburse and monitor funds for housing delivery in compliance with the
Public Finance Management Act (1999) and Division of Revenue Act, 2005
requirements, to ensure that expenditure matches annual delivery commit-
ments.

Service delivery objectives and indicators A
Annual Report 2004

The following functions were carried out during the financial year under
review, however, they could not be captured in the above schedule as it
was indicated at planning stage.

1. Reviewed the 2004-05 annual financial statements of the three public
entities (namely RHLF, NURCHA and NHFC), the quarterly Financial
Statements for the 2005/06 year and their 2006/07 budgets and issued
analysis reports and reported to the entities on their compliance status.

2. Provided comprehensive inputs for the development of the policy on the
conditional grants and on the public entities. !
REPORT
3. Reviewed the provincial business plans on the conditional grant and
compiled a national business plan on the conditional grant.

4. Inputs for the 2006/07 DORA Bill were provided to National Treasury
within the stipulated timeframe.

5. The payment schedule for the 2006/07 year was compiled using the
provincial cash flow projections and was submitted to National Treasury
within the stipulated timeframes.
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92 PART 3. REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Report of the Audit Committee in terms of
Treasury Regulations 3 (1)(10)(b) and (c)
and the Public Finance Management Act,
1 of 1999, as amended

The Audit Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms

I of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, and has regulated its affairs
in compliance with this charter, and has discharged its responsibilities con-
tained therein.

The members of the Audit Committee and their attendance are
as follows:

In the conduct of its duties, the Audit Committee, has inter alia, reviewed

[ | the following:

* The effectiveness of the internal control systems.
» The effectiveness of the internal audit function.

* The risk areas of the entity’s operations covered in the scope of internal
and external audits.

* The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided
by management and other users of such information.

» Accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of external and
internal audits.

* The entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.

« The activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work
programme, coordination with the external auditors, the reports of
significant investigations and the responses of management to specific
recommendations.

* The independence and objectivity of the internal and external auditors.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion based on the information and ex-
planation by management and the internal auditors and discussions with
the independent external auditors on the result of their audits and status
in addressing the matters raised by SCOPA, that the internal accounting
controls are operating, though they need strengthening and improvement
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to ensure that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing the
annual financial statements, and accountability for assets and liabilities is
maintained.

Nothing significant has come to the attention of the Audit Committee other
than the matters referred to in the Auditor-General’s report to indicate that
any material breakdown in the functioning of these control, procedures and
systems has occurred during the year under review.

The Audit Committee has evaluated the annual financial statements of the
Department of Housing for the year ended 31 March 2006 and based on
the information provided to the Audit Committee, considers that it complies,
in all material respects, with the requirements of the Public Financial Man-
agement Act, 1 of 1999, as amended and Accounting Practice.

At the meeting held on the 25 July 2006, the Audit Committee recommend-
ed the adoption of the annual financial statements by the Department of
Housing.

Chairperson
Ms S Hari
Date: 25 July 2006
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94 PART 4. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

Report of the accounting officer for the year
ended 31 March 2006

Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Parliament
of the Republic of South Africa.

This year follows on the heels of the approval of the Comprehensive Plan.
Being the first year of the plan 2005/06 was the year of activity. A year dur-
ing which, much attention was given to policy review and development of
new policies in order to take into account the principles of the “Plan”. Such
review work included:

* Review mandate and re-positioning our public entities such that they are
more effective in supporting our efforts to implement the “Plan”.

» Asocial housing policy for South Africa was developed and approved.

* Review of the allocation formula which has always been urban biased
was finalised this year.

»  OPSCAP guidelines were approved and included in the framework of
the Division of Revenue Act, 2005.

* The enhanced discount benefit scheme.

The following conferences were hosted by the Department to ensure that
the housing sector develops better communication between the stakehold-
ers:

» National Municipal Housing Indaba.
* International Research Seminar.
» Social Housing Contract.

We commenced the process of audit and consolidation of the waiting list
in Cape Town, Western Cape. The process has provided us with lessons
which we will use as the process moves into other areas of the country.
Negotiations with the banks resulted in the pledging of R42 billion which
will be released into the affordable housing market.

Through a partnership, ABSA Bank and the National Builders Registration
Council have made much progress in developing new housing designs.
This innovative project is progressing well and will change the face of our
future housing projects.

A policy which will assist in ensuring that municipality’s IDP’s provide for
the integration of housing chapters that is ready for approval. This will cre-
ate a housing voice in the local sphere of government.

In recognition of the fact that the local sphere of government is critical in
housing delivery, a framework for the accreditation of municipalities was
developed with provinces prioritising some municipalities for accreditation.
Funding ear-marked for accreditation was subsequently made available for
use by some of the prioritised Local Authorities and Provinces in their effort
to build capacity.

A consumer education programme was successfully piloted in four prov-
inces.



1.1 General budget overview

The Departments’ adjusted budget is R5,265 billion for the year under re-
view and represents a 8.33% increase from the R4,827 billion adjusted ap-
propriation for the previous financial year. Overall 95.30% or R5,018 billion
was budgeted for transfers and subsidies. The amount of R5,018 billion
was budgeted for as follows:

The remaining 5% was budgeted for various programmes as shown below
(as percentage of the total 5%):

1.2 Spending analysis

The Department spent R5,241 billion out of the total of R5,265 billion. This
represents a 99,55% spending rate and 0,45% (0,51% in 2004/05) under-
spending on the vote.

This 0,45% underspending translates to an amount of R23,756 million
(R24,678 million in 2004/05) and is due to the following:

A. Compensation of employees

Underspending on this item amounts to R5,725 million and is mainly due
to vacant positions during the year while they were being filled or which
could not be filled during the year. The most affected programmes where
the amounts exceed 5% are:

B. Goods and services

The combined underspending on this item amounts to R15,175 million.
This is mainly due to:-

» Savings on the transversal contract with Dimension Data.

» Delays in the completion of, or cancellation of the following projects:

+ Auditing of the Housing waiting lists in the country, the updating and
consolidation thereof.

» Assessment and auditing of the interpretation and implementation
of local and provincial legislation.

» Determining the capacity requirements of the National and Provin-
cial Departments of Housing.

» Development of a detailed policy and implementation manual on the
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variation of subsidy amount to cater for extraordinary development
conditions and special housing requirements of certain categories
of beneficiaries.

« Development of a comprehensive monitoring, evaluation and im-
pact assessment system.

* Revision of the National Housing Programme: Rural Housing Subsi-
dies.

The most affected programmes are:

C. Department agencies and accounts

_ The combined underspending on this item amounts to R0,704 million. This
amount was left unclaimed for VAT as the actual VAT amount was less than
anticipated.

D. Machinery and equipment

The combined underspending on this item amounts to R1,472 million. This
is mainly due to items ordered before year end and delivered after year
end.

2. Services rendered by the Department

By its nature, the National Department of Housing’s main purpose, task and
mandate is that of policy development and monitoring. This includes the
setting of appropriate norms and standards for housing development, pro-
gramme implementation monitoring and evaluation, including research on
housing related matters, maintenance of a housing data bank (for housing
information derived from and for the other spheres of government through
the HUIS, HSS and the Housing Debtors’ systems), and assessment and
analysis of appropriate information related to key housing indicators nec-
essary for informed decision making. The Department therefore does not
render direct services to the public.

2.1 Free services

No free services were rendered by the Department to the public during the
year under review and there are none planned for the foreseeable future.

2.2 Inventories
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At the beginning of the financial year, the Department had a total of 345
posts, of which 83 were vacant. This translates to a 24% vacancy rate.
About 84% of this vacancy rate relates to highly skilled staff and senior
management while the remainder was in respect of skilled and lower skilled
staff.

At the end of the financial year, the Department had a total of 406 (345 +
61 additional posts) positions, of which 79 were vacant. This translates to
a 19% vacancy rate. This situation reflects some improvement from the
previous year. The Department was compelled to outsource some work to
various service providers.

In addition to an opening balance of R4,123 million from USAID, a total
amount of R21,751 million was received during the financial year. These
funds were used to assist fund projects as follows:

 Social Housing Foundation R20,209 million
‘ Social Housing Foundation R1,542 million ‘
‘ People’s Housing Partnership Trust R1,402 million ‘

The following are the public or trading entities established through the
Department of Housing:-

5.1 South African Housing Fund

The purpose of the South African Housing Fund is to avail funds to Provin-
cial governments to finance national and provincial Housing programmes
in terms of the Housing Act, 1997(Act 107 of 1997). All funds transferred
through the South African Housing Fund must be utilized according to pre-
scripts set out by the Housing Code. In addition, funds transferred to the
Fund are distributed to provinces in terms of the annual Division of Rev-
enue Act (DORA) as conditional grants. The provincial allocations are de-
termined according to an allocation formula based on a number of factors
as determined Housing MinMEC and approved by Cabinet.

During 2003/4 financial year MINMEC approved that the fund be disestab-
lish as its continued existence was no longer necessary as result the fund
was subsequently de-listed. In anticipation of its disestablishment no funds
were transferred to the provinces through the fund during the current year.

5.2 SERVCON

The purpose of the establishment of SERVCON is to provide exclusive
management services with respect to the normalisation of a designated or
ring-fenced portfolio comprising Properties in Possession (PIP’s) and Non-
Performing Loans (NPL’s) in terms of the normalisation programme agreed
to between Government through the Department of Housing and the Bank-
ing Council which represents the participating banks.

SERVCON provided the Department with a business plan, which set out
activities, key performance indicators and a budget including an expected
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cash flow. The Department received quarterly progress reports, a state-
ment of real expenditure for that quarter and a claim for costs incurred for
the previous quarter.

SERVCON'’s mandate was to finalise its portfolio by 31 March 2006. This
however, has not been possible and therefore it has been agreed that it
must finalise its mandate by the end of June 2006.

5.3 Social Housing Foundation

The purpose of the establishment of the Social Housing Foundation is to
develop and build capacity of social housing institutions, to encourage net-
working both locally and internationally, to promote development aid fund-
ing for social housing development in South Africa, to promote information
and skills exchange and to develop a policy framework for social housing
in South Africa.

The Social Housing Foundation submitted to the Department a business
plan for approval. This was approved subject to conditions agreed upon
with the Foundation. The Foundation then submitted claims based on re-
quirements and expenditure reports that were evaluated by the Depart-
ment. Quarterly reports of performance were also received by the Depart-
ment and are compared to set targets.

5.4 National Urban Reconstruction and Housing Agency
(NURCHA)

The NURCHA's mission is to expedite housing delivery for low-income
households over the short to medium term. It was established as a Presi-
dential Lead Project in 1995 by agreement between Government and the
Open Society Foundation of New York. Its primary function is to help relea-
se finance for low-cost housing from financial institutions. NURCHA’s main
activity is to offer guarantees to banks, to encourage them to make bridging
finance loans available to developers. MINMEC appointed NURCHA as the
savings scheme intermediary for the National Savings Programme.

NURCHA provided the Department with a business plan, which set out
activities, key performance indicators and a budget including an expected
cash flow. The Department received quarterly progress reports, a state-
ment of actual expenditure for that quarter and a claim for costs incurred
for the previous quarter.

The Department transferred funds to the following institutions as shown
below:

6.1 Provinces: Human Settlement Redevelopment
Programme

This grant is transferred to the provincial departments to address dysfunc-
tional human settlements. The province must submit a business plan,
which should have been developed and agreed to with local authorities.

On approval of a business plan funds are transferred to the provinces in
terms of the annual Division of Revenue Act, 2005 as conditional grants.
The provincial allocations are determined according to an allocation for-
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mula based on a number of factors as determined by Housing MINMEC
and approved by Cabinet. In respect of each project to be funded a prov-
ince must submit project proposals outlining activities to be funded which
are considered and approved by the Human Settlement Redevelopment
Programme Steering Committee. A total amount of R24,396 million was
transferred to provinces during the year under review. This year has been
the last year for the grant as it has now been merged into the Housing
Grant to form part of the Integrated Housing and Human Settlement De-
velopment Grant.

6.2 Provinces: Integrated Housing and Human Settle-
ment Development Grant

This grant is transferred to the provincial departments to finance national
and provincial housing programmes. Funds were transferred to the prov-
inces in terms of the annual Division of Revenue Act, 2005 as conditional
grants. The provincial allocations are determined according to an alloca-
tion formula based on a number of factors as determined by Housing MIN-
MEC. A total of R4,843 billion was transferred to the provinces during the
year under review.

6.3 Habitat
This is for membership subscription in respect of the International Coop-

eration Forum. A total amount of R0,069 million was transferred for the
annual membership fee.

6.4 SERVCON
A total of R42,097 million was transferred during the year under review.
6.5 Social Housing Foundation

A total of R20,578 million was transferred during the year under review.

6.6 National Urban Reconstruction and Housing Agency
(NURCHA)

A total of R22,879 million was transferred during the year under review.

6.7 Banking Institutions: First Time Home Buyers
Interest Subsidy Scheme

This is in respect of interest subsidies to banks for first time home buyers.
This programme under which this arrangement was made is currently be-
ing phased out and will be finalised by 2006/07.

No Public, Private, Partnership as contemplated in terms of the Treasury
Regulations was entered into by the Department under review.

A risk management committee was established during the year and will
assist as from 2006/07 in developing a risk management and fraud preven-
tion strategy.
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The SA Housing Fund has been delisted from the list of Public Entities by
the National Treasury. The delisting of the fund is due to the agreement
with National Treasury that the continued existence of the fund is no longer
necessary, a decision that was approved by MINMEC in November 2003.
The legislative process is underway:

» To amend the Housing Act is underway to effect alignments between
the Housing Act and the Public Finance Management Act and Division
of Revenue legislation provisions; and

* To disestablish the fund.

The chairperson of the audit committee rendered his resignation subse-
quent to his appointment as internal auditor for the Rural Housing Loan
Fund.

The Department’s Strategic Plan is regarded as the primary plan that guides
all other planning processes of the Department. This plan is reviewed an-
nually and aligned to the Medium Term Expenditure Framework process
and is the basis for preparation of the operational plans of each unit, per-
formance agreements of Senior Managers and work plans of all other staff.
In accordance with the governance and committee structure framework ap-
proved by the Strategic Management Committee (Stratman), operational
plans and performance agreements are reviewed at operational level on a
quarterly basis and quarterly reports submitted to the Executive Authority
dealing with higher level strategic issues. Performance reports by prov-
inces are tabled and discussed by the Stratman on a monthly basis and the
intergovernmental structures in Housing namely, the Technical MINMEC
and MINMEC on a quarterly basis.

Housing Institutions report to the Department on a quarterly basis in ac-
cordance with a framework that was developed by the Department in this
regard, and their reports are also tabled in the Technical MINMEC and the
MINMEC.

Approval

The Annual Financial statements starting from pages 94 to 156 have been
approved by the Accounting Officer.

| W KOTSOANE
DIRECTOR-GENERAL
DATE: 31 MAY 2006
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament
on the Financial Statements of the
Department of Housing Vote 28 for the year
ended 31 March 2006

The financial statements as set out on pages 94 to 156 for the year ended
31 March 2006 have been audited in terms of section 188 of the Constitu-
tion of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, read with sections 4 and 20 of
the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No 25 of 2004) and section 40 of the Pub-
lic Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA). The fixed
asset opening balances have not been audited because of the timing of
guidance from National Treasury to departments relating to the treatment,
valuation and disclosure of fixed assets. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the accounting officer. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements, based on the audit.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards
on Auditing read with General Notice 544 of 2006, issued in Government
Gazette no. 28723 of 10 April 2006 and General Notice 808 of 2006, issued
in Government Gazette no. 28954 of 23 June 2006. Those standards re-
quire that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

* examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements.

» assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management.

» evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

| believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

The department’s policy is to prepare financial statements on the modified
cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as described
in paragraph 1.1 of the accounting policies to the financial statements.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material re-
spects, the financial position of the Department of Housing at 31 March
2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting deter-
mined by the National Treasury of South Africa, as described in paragraph
1.1 of the accounting policies to the financial statements, and in the man-
ner required by the PFMA.
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Without further qualifying the audit opinion, attention is drawn to the follow-
ing matters:

5.1 Internal audit

i) The work of the internal auditor could not be relied on since the
internal audit reports were not issued timeously.

ii) The internal audit function did not comply with section 30(3) of the
Division of Revenue Act, 2005 (Act No. 1 of 2005) which requires
that the internal audit unit of the transferring national department
must coordinate and cooperate with the internal audit units of the
provincial departments and the municipalities. The accounting officer
of the national department also did not report to the audit committee
on compliance with this section, as required by section 30(4).

5.2 National Environmental Act

The department did not comply with section 11(1) of the National Environ-
mental Act, 1998 (Act No.107 of 1998) by preparing a new Environmen-
tal Implementation Plan within 4 years after the first one which had to be
prepared within one year after promulgation of the act. The first plan was
prepared in November 2000.

The department’s report on performance against predetermined objectives
was only received on 28 June 2006 and not by 15 June 2006 as required
by the Guide for the Preparation of Annual Reports issued by the National
Treasury. Consequently, the auditing of this information was delayed. The
more significant shortcoming identified was that the measurable objec-
tives are not consistent between the Estimate of National Expenditure, the
Strategic Plan and the performance information reported on in the annual
report for programme 5.

The department did not have a human resource management plan as re-
quired by the Public Service Regulations 2001, chapter 1, part Ill D.1, con-
sequently no gap analysis was performed by the department.

An information systems audit of the program and data change controls
within the housing subsidy system is currently being conducted and the
outcome will be reported on if needed.

The South African Housing Trust has been disestablished in terms of the
disestablishment of the South African Housing Trust Limited Act, 2002
(Act no 26 of 2002).
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The Special Investigating Unit (SIU) is currently investigating the manner
in which the SAHT and its wholly owned subsidiaries and the business of
these companies were sold, and certain matters relating to it in terms of
Proclamation 49 of 2004.

Performance audits were conducted in all nine provinces on the applica-
tion and approval process pertaining to housing subsidies. Since most of
the findings originated from deficient management measures that were ge-
neric throughout, the summarised findings were reported to parliament in a
separate report RP 13/2006 in January 2006.

Emanating from a request from the national Department of Housing in June
2006, the Auditor-General is conducting a special audit into the N2 Gate-
way project. The primary objectives of the audit are:

» to audit the process flow, identify deviations from the planned activities
and time frames, and determine related root causes and role players;

* to study the memorandum of understanding between various role
players and audit adherence to responsibilities and commitments; and

» to highlight any inefficiency in the applicable policies, processes or

structures involved in the N2 Gateway project that were revealed during
the audit.

The scope will be limited to the instructions received from the department
and the audit is not a comprehensive evaluation of the said project. The
outcome of this audit is expected to be available early in 2007.

The assistance rendered by the staff of the Department of Housing during
the audit is sincerely appreciated.

Shauket Fatee

S A Fakie
Auditor-General
Pretoria

31 July 2006

AUDITOR-GENERAL
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Accounting Policies

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the fol-
lowing policies, which have been applied consistently in all material as-
pects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and mean-
ingful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness
of the Financial Statements and to comply with the statutory requirements
of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act
29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Act and
the Division of Revenue Act, Act 1 of 2005.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis
of accounting, except where stated otherwise. The modified cash basis
constitutes the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional
disclosure items. Under the cash basis of accounting transactions and
other events are recognised when cash is received or paid or when the
final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than
31 March of each year).

1.2 Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand
(R) which is also the functional currency of the department.

1.3 Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the near-
est one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4 Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current
year’s financial statements. Where necessary figures included in the prior
period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the for-
mat in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of
the current year’s financial statements. A comparison between actual and
budgeted amounts per major classification of expenditure is included in the
appropriation statement.

2.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the
appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments to the appropriated funds
made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the
financial records on the date the adjustments become effective. Total ap-
propriated funds are presented in the statement of financial performance.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National/Provincial
Revenue Fund, unless approval has been given by the National/Provincial
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Treasury to rollover the funds to the subsequent financial year. These roll-
over funds form part of retained funds in the annual financial statements.
Amounts owing to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the
financial year are recognised in the statement of financial position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is paid into the National/Provincial Revenue Fund
when received, unless otherwise stated. Amounts owing to the National/
Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in
the statement of financial position.

2.2.1 Tax revenue

Tax revenue consists of all compulsory unrequited amounts collected by
the department in accordance with laws and or regulations (excluding
fines, penalties & forfeits). Tax receipts are recognised in the statement of
financial performance when received.

2.2.2 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
The proceeds received from the sale of goods and/or the provision of
services is recognised in the statement of financial performance when the
cash is received.

2.2.3 Fines, penalties & forfeits

Fines, penalties & forfeits are compulsory unrequited amounts which
were imposed by a court or quasi-judicial body and collected by the de-
partment. Revenue arising from fines, penalties and forfeits is recognised
in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received.

2.2.4 Interest, dividends and rent on land
Interest, dividends and rent on land is recognised in the statement of
financial performance when the cash is received.

2.2.5 Sale of capital assets
The proceeds received on sale of capital assets are recognised in the
statement of financial performance when the cash is received.

2.2.6 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
Repayments of loans and advances previously extended to employees
and public corporations for policy purposes are recognised as revenue in
the statement of financial performance on receipt of the funds. Amounts
receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure notes to
the annual financial statements. Cheques issued in previous accounting
periods that expire before being banked are recognised as revenue in
the statement of financial performance when the cheque becomes stale.
When the cheque is reissued the payment is made from Revenue.

2.2.7 Gifts, donations and sponsorships (transfers received)
All cash gifts, donations and sponsorships are paid into the National/Pro-
vincial Revenue Fund and recorded as revenue in the statement of finan-
cial performance when received. Amounts receivable at the reporting
date are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements. All
in-kind gifts, donations and sponsorships are disclosed at fair value in the
annexures to the financial statements.
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2.3 Local and foreign aid assistance

Local and foreign aid assistance is recognised in the financial records when
notification of the donation is received from the National Treasury or when
the department directly receives the cash from the donor(s). The total cash
amounts received during the year is reflected in the statement of financial
performance as revenue.

All'in-kind local and foreign aid assistance are disclosed at fair value in the
annexures to the annual financial statements

The cash payments made during the year relating to local and foreign aid
assistance projects are recognised as expenditure in the statement of fi-
nancial performance. A receivable is recognised in the statement of finan-
cial position to the value of the amounts expensed prior to the receipt of
the funds. A payable is raised in the statement of financial position where
amounts have been inappropriately expensed using local and foreign aid
assistance. Unutilised amounts are recognised in the statement of financial
position.

3.1 Compensation of employees

Salaries and wages comprise payments to employees. Salaries and wages
are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no
later than 31 March of each year). Capitalised compensation forms part
of the expenditure for capital assets in the statement of financial perform-
ance.

All other payments are classified as current expense.

Social contributions include the entities’ contribution to social insurance
schemes paid on behalf of the employee. Social contributions are recog-
nised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the
final authorisation for payment is effected on the system.

3.2 Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits comprise of leave entitlements (capped
leave), thirteenth cheques and performance bonuses. The cost of short-
term employee benefits is expensed as salaries and wages in the state-
ment of financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is
effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or construc-
tive obligation are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. These
amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial performance.

3.2.1 Long-term employee benefits

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an
expense in the statement of financial performance as a transfer when
the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later
than 31 March of each year).
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The department provides retirement benefits (pension benefits) for cer-
tain of its employees through a defined benefit plan for government em-
ployees. These benefits are funded by both employer and employee
contributions. Employer contributions to the fund are expensed when
the final authorisation for payment to the fund is effected on the sys-
tem (by no later than 31 March of each year). No provision is made for
retirement benefits in the financial statements of the department. Any
potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the Na-
tional/Provincial Revenue Fund and not in the financial statements of
the employer department. The department provides medical benefits for
certain of its employees. Employer contributions to the medical funds
are expensed when the final authorisation for payment to the fund is ef-
fected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

3.3 Goods and services

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense
in the statement of financial performance when the final authorisation for
payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).
The expense is classified as capital if the goods and services were used
on a capital project.

3.4 Interest and rent on land

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the state-
ment of financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is
effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). This item
excludes rental for the use of buildings or other fixed structures.

3.5 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-off
are limited to the amount of savings and/or underspending of appropriated
funds. The write off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No
provision is made for irrecoverable amounts but amounts are disclosed as
a disclosure note. All other losses are recognised when authorisation has
been granted for the recognition thereof.

3.6 Unauthorised expenditure

When discovered unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in
the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is
either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible
person or written off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial perform-
ance. Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is recognised in
the statement of financial performance when the unauthorised expenditure
is approved and the related funds are received. Where the amount is ap-
proved without funding it is recognised as expenditure, subject to avail-
ability of savings, in the statement of financial performance on the date of
approval.

3.7 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an asset in the state-
ment of financial position until such time as the expenditure is recovered
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from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the statement
of financial performance.

3.8 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of fi-
nancial performance. If the expenditure is not condoned by the relevant
authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as ir-
recoverable.

3.9 Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final
authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than
31 March of each year).

3.10 Expenditure for capital assets

Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an expense in the
statement of financial performance when the final authorisation for pay-
ment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial posi-
tion at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly
liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

4.2 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the payments are made.

4.3 Receivables

Receivables included in the statement of financial position arise from cash
payments made that are recoverable from another party. Revenue receiv-
able not yet collected is included in the disclosure notes. Amounts that are
potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.4 Investments

Capitalised investments are shown at cost in the statement of financial
position. Any cash flows such as dividends received or proceeds from the
sale of the investment are recognised in the statement of financial perform-
ance. Investments are tested for an impairment loss whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the investment may be impaired.
Any impairment loss is included in the disclosure notes.

4.5 Loans

Loans are recognised in the statement of financial position at the nominal
amount. Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the dis-
closure notes.
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4.6 Asset

Assets are recorded in an assets register, at cost, on receipt of the item.
Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of acquisition. Assets pro-
cured in previous financial periods, may be stated at fair value, where de-
terminable, of R1, in instances where the original cost of acquisition of fair
value cannot be established. No revaluation or impairment of assets is
currently recognised in the asset register. Projects (of construction/devel-
opment) running over more than one financial year relating to assets, are
only brought into asset register on completion of the project and at the total
cost incurred over the duration of the project.

Annexure 4 and 5 of the disclosure notes, reflect the total movement in the
asset register of assets with a cost equal to and exceeding R5000 (there-
fore capital assets only) for the current year. The movement is reflected at
the cost as recorded in the asset register and not recognised in the finan-
cial statements under the modified cash basis of accounting. The opening
balance reflected on Annexure 4 and 5 will include items procured in prior
accounting periods and closing balance will represent the total cost of the
register for capital on hand.

5.1 Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other govern-
mental entities. These payables are recognised at historical cost in the
statement of financial position.

5.2 Lease commitments

Lease commitments represent amounts owing from the reporting date to
the end of the lease contract. These commitments are not recognised in
the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the
statement of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.
Operating and finance lease commitments are expensed when the pay-
ments are made. Assets acquired in terms of finance lease agreements are
disclosed in the annexures to the financial statements.

5.3 Accruals

Accruals represent goods/services that have been received, but where no
invoice has been received from the supplier at the reporting date, or where
an invoice has been received but final authorisation for payment has not
been effected on the system. Accruals are not recognised in the statement
of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of finan-
cial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.4 Contingent liabilities

« Acontingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the department; or

* A contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events
but is not recognised because:

» ltis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
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benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation;
or

+ The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes.

5.5 Commitments

Commitments represent goods/services that have been approved and/or
contracted, but where no delivery has taken place at the reporting date.
Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a
liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance but are
included in the disclosure notes.

6.1 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities
originating in a prior reporting period but which are recognised in the state-
ment of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period.
Amounts are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund on dis-
posal, repayment or recovery of such amounts.

6.2 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made
and recognised in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from a
debtor.

Related parties are other entities that control or significantly influence the
department in making financial and operating decisions. Specific informa-
tion with regards to related party transactions is included in the disclosure
notes.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and re-
sponsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the depart-
ment. Compensation paid to key management personnel including their
family members where relevant, is included in the disclosure notes.
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Notes to the Appropriation Statement for the year ended 31 March 2006

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):Detail of these transactions can be
viewed in note 9 (Transfers and subsidies) and Annexure 1 (A-L) to the annual financial statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the annual financial statements.

. Detail on financial transactions in assets and liabilities.

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in note 8 (Details of special functions (theft and losses))
to the annual financial statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after virement):

4.1 Per programme:
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4.2 Per economic classification




Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 March 2006
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2006
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 31 March 2006




Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2006




Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006

1. Annual Appropriation
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006

ANNEXURE 1B

ANNEXURE 1C

ANNEXURE 1D
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ANNEXURE 1E

ANNEXURE 1F

ANNEXURE 1G
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006

ANNEXURE 2A
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ANNEXURE 3A

ANNEXURE 3B
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ANNEXURE 4
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ANNEXURE 6
INTER-GOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

ANNEXURE 7
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL PAYABLES — CURRENT
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Annual financial statements and annual reports for
2005/06 in terms of section 27 of the Division of
Revenue Act, 2005: Integrated Housing and Human
Settlement and Development Grant

1. Section 27(a)

2. Section 27(b)
Indicate the transfers, if any, that were withheld in respect of each province
or municipality.

There were no grant funds withheld during the year.

3. Section 27(c)

It is hereby certified that all the allocated funds in respect of the two grants
were deposited in the provincial primary accounts as per the instruction
from the National Treasury.

4. Section 27(d)

The National Transferring Officer did not utilise nor retain any of the grant
funds for administration purposes.

5. Disclosure

The National Department could not certify that all the provincial business
plans in respect of the 2005/06 financial year were approved before the
end of the 2004/05 financial year as some of the provincial Departments of
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Housing experienced problems in the compilation thereof and consequent-
ly submitted the business plans late.

The submission of business plans was not a requirement prior to 2005/06.
It should be emphasised that the submission of business plans in the for-
mat and magnitude required was a first time experience for all the provin-
ces and as such that contributed to the delays in submission of the busi-
ness plans. The Certificate of Compliance was submitted before the due
date of 15 April 2005 in respect of eight of the provinces. No funds were
transferred to the provinces prior to submission by the provinces of their
business plans.

All the provinces submitted the required conditional grants reports and pro-
vided the information in terms of the approved guidelines, and if and when
necessary made additional information available. The National Department
submitted expenditure reports and non-financial information on a quarterly
basis, to HOD and MINMEC meetings where the content was discussed
in detail.

The National Department was earlier in the financial year not satisfied with
the rate of expenditure and communicated in writing with the provinces to
rectify the situation. The Minister also visited most of the provinces and
met with the MEC’s and senior management staff to address housing de-
livery and attendant financial matters. The HSS system is also used to an
extent.

In respect of the Human Settlement and Redevelopment grant compliance
with the conditions of the Programme is being monitored in terms of an
approved Monitoring and Reporting Framework. Despite having this frame-
work in place it has been difficult to monitor compliance with the Division of
Revenue Act. This was due to a lack of quality reporting in accordance with
the above framework by some Provinces. The Department addressed the
aforementioned problems through provincial project manager meetings,
providing provinces with detailed monthly feedback regarding the quality
of the monthly reports and conducting provincial visits. In addition to these
interventions the Departments also requested detailed project by project
status quo reports in some provinces from the project implementors to en-
sure that information contained in the monthly reports are accurate and
concise. These feedback processes focused on resolving inconsistencies
in and omissions of required information. This task has, however, been
challenging in relation to some provinces as the provincial project manag-
ers are changed regularly with the end result that ongoing training and
capacitation needs to occur to ensure that the required information is sub-
mitted. In accordance with the grant framework only funding committed in
terms of approved business plans was transferred to the Provinces through
out the course of the financial year.

The HSRP was furthermore reviewed concurrently with the formulation
of the Comprehensive Plan for the Development Sustainable Human
Settlements of the Department of Housing within which the Department
committed itself towards achieving the broader notion of sustainable hu-
man settlements and more efficient cities, towns and regions. The projects
funded through this pilot programme contributed towards the mainstream-
ing of certain elements within the comprehensive plan including inter alia
the funding of the provision of selected social and economic facilities and
amenities.
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Number of housing projects approved: 321
Number of subsidies represented by approved housing projects: 137 746
Number of subsidies approved to specific beneficiaries: 153 528

Housing delivery:
Number of sites completed: 115 175
Number of units completed: 137 659

8.1.1.Limpopo

The province indicated the following matters, which affects the expendi-
ture:

« Building of houses were affected by a shortage of acceptable quality
bricks. The contractors could only deliver 1 500 bricks per week while the
province needed 3 000 to meet their target of building 12 000 houses.

* Housing delivery was affected by heavy rains in the period January to
March 2006.

* Non-compliance by developers when submitting claims without the rele-
vant supporting documents.

» Usage of unspecified material by some of the contractors delayed the
flow of payment.

The province took the following remedial actions:

» Specifications amended to authorise certain individual contractors to
use cement bricks.

» All local authorities were informed in writing that cement bricks may be
used as indicated in the first bullet.

» Contractors were reminded to attach the relevant supporting documents
when they submit progress claims. Project Managers were also reques-
ted to ensure that all supporting documents are attached to claims at the
time of submission.

* A meeting was held with all contractors to urge them to complete pro-
jects in terms of provisions of the agreement.

« Contractors were urged to use the specified material as per departmen-
tal prescripts.

8.1.2. Free State

A variety of factors influenced housing delivery in the province but one of
the major contributing factors was the heavy rainfall experienced in many
areas, which resulted in the delay of the construction process, as the mate-
rial delivery vehicles could not access the construction sites. Lack of ca-
pacity, especially on technical level is a crucial factor.

The Provincial Housing Department, in consultation with the MEC and with
the approval of the Provincial Executive Council, is addressing matters
influencing delivery in a document named “The Turn-A-Round” housing
strategy. The document is comprehensive and inter alia the following as-
pects will be addressed:
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* The Provincial Housing Department will support Local Authorities with
the development of their IDP’s and based on that document, in a
consultative process, execute housing delivery.

» Identify suitable land in collaboration with Local Authorities and ensure
that a general plan and township register be opened.

» Prioritise the provision of services for proposed affordable housing
development.

* Ensure that Local Authorities create and manage a “Living Waiting List”
of prospective beneficiaries.

» Capacitate Local Authorities through the departmental capacity building
programmes. Emphasising skills of a technical nature which include,
project management, quality control, legal, consumer education and
other housing delivery related aspects.

* Ensure the completion of partially constructed housing units.

8.1.3. Mpumalanga

The department took a strategic decision to focus on the completion of in-
complete housing projects that were blocked as a result of non-availability
of land and inflation problems.

The provincial department had challenges relating to staff due to high va-
cancy rates in the Chief Directorate: Housing and Technical, especially in
the area of project management and engineering services.

Individual and contract based subsidies: In this province there are
over 750 small emerging builders building houses and some of them
have been found to be non-performing. Regrettably, fraudulent activities
occurred on some projects, which resulted in disciplinary actions being
taken as well as criminal charges being laid. The impact of inflation in
respect of the subsidies also had an effect;

Project linked: The subsidy amount is used not only for the top
structure, but also to design and install water and sewer connections,
gravel roads and minimum storm water systems in a Greenfield area
where a number of houses are planned. The projects were blocked due
to various land related matters, eg. township establishment. The heavy
rain also contributed significantly to slow progress.

People Housing Process: This instrument is in respect of the people
who wish to construct their own houses with the help of a support
organisation. The progress is slow due to factors such a water supply
in the rural areas, escalation of material prices; support organisations
which are not credit worthy or do not have adequate funds to purchase
materials in bulk.

Remedial action taken

e Cancelled the contracts of the non-performing contractors and
followed the prescribed process to appoint new contractors. A
more stringent approach was adopted with appointment of new/
replacement contractors.

* The legal department allocated more resources towards the finalisa-
tion of new contracts.
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* In respect of the effects of inflation on the subsidies the province
obtained an additional allocation from the Provincial Treasury to
address the problem.

* In view of the small profit margin only small contractors could be
appointed.

« Consultants appointed, were instructed to concentrate more on
construction management in areas where incomplete top structures
existed. Departmental staff were instructed to be on sites for at least
3 days to assist contractors with problems.

» Contracted with material suppliers in order to assist contractors who
have difficulty to obtain credit.

8.2. Human Settlement Redevelopment Programme (HSRP)

The transfer of funds was affected on condition that suitable business plans
were submitted and approved by the Department of Housing. The alloca-
tion of R24,396 million was made available to honour the commitments
made in relation to project business plans already approved in the 2004/05
financial year. The grant funds the capital expenditure of the projects ap-
proved in terms of the criteria of the Programme.

The Transfer of Payment Schedule was not amended during the 2005/06
financial year. As prescribed by the grant framework the funding was only
transferred to the provinces once approved business plans were in place.

In the 2005/06 financial year total expenditure in terms of the HSRP
amounted to R102,351 million. The total 2005/06 allocation plus R77,955
million of the roll overs from previous financial years was thus spent. Prov-
inces generally have improved upon their year on year expenditure in the
2005/06 financial year. Gauteng has spent 100% of its HSRP funding whilst
Free State, Mpumalanga and North West have spent over 75% of the total
allocations (current year allocations plus roll over amounts from previous
financial years).
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Financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2006

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

The change in focus in housing delivery to quality housing and a shift to alter-
native forms of housing tenure have formed the background against which
sustainable housing delivery was achieved. As reported in 2003/2004,
changes in the financial management legislative environment precipitated
a need to review the funds flow mechanisms to provinces. The draft legisla-
tion is in the process of being approved to give effect to that decision. As
reflected in the Annual Report of 2003/2004 the Department’s intention to
disestablish the South African Housing Fund was indicated as a pre-requi-
site legislative action to amend the Housing Act of 1997.

MINMEC approved that the process for the disestablishment of the Fund
be commenced with and that draft legislation be prepared for Executive
approval.

A draft Bill has been submitted to the Minister for consideration on 28 April
2005 before the matter can be submitted to Cabinet.

The delisting of the South African Housing Fund was approved with effect
from 18 November 2003.

In view of the aforementioned, the South African Housing Fund was dor-
mant as from 01 April 2004 to facilitate the final audit of the Fund and con-
sequently no transactions were processed during the financial year.

2. Accounting Authority’s emoluments

In terms of section 11(5)(a) of the Housing Act (Act No. 107 of 1997) the
Director-General: Housing is the accounting officer of the South African
Housing Fund.

No emoluments were paid to the accounting authority from the funds of the
South African Housing Fund since the accounting officer is being remuner-
ated by the Department of Housing.

3. Auditors

In terms of section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
1996 (Act No. 108 of 1998) read with section 4 and 20 of the Public Audit
Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and section 11(8) of the Housing Act, 1997
(Act No. 107 of 1997) the Auditor-General has the responsibility to audit the
books and statements of account and balance sheet of the South African
Housing Fund. The Office of the Auditor-General will continue to perform
the statutory audit of the South African Housing Fund.
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4. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements set out on pages 157 to 163 for the South African
Housing Fund were approved by the accounting officer.

Gl

Chief Financial Officer Date: 31 May 2006
M Dlabantu

Accounting Officer Date: 31 May 2006
| W Kotsoane
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament
on the Financial Statements of the South
African Housing Fund for the year ended

31 March 2006

The financial statements as set out on pages 157 to 163, for the year end-
ed 31 March 2006, have been audited in terms of section 188 of the Con-
stitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, read with sections 4 and 20
of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and section 11(8) of the
Housing Act, 1997 (Act No. 107 of 1997). These financial statements are
the responsibility of the accounting officer. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements, based on the audit.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing read with General Notice 544 of 2006, issued in Government Ga-
zette n0.28723 of 10 April 2006. Those standards require that | plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

* examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements,

» assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and

» evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

| believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

The entity’s policy is to prepare the financial statements on the entity spe-
cific basis of accounting described in note 1 to the financial statements.

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material re-
spects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in note 1 to
the financial statements.

Without qualifying the audit opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to
the following matter:

5.1 Disestablishment of the South African Housing Fund

As disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, the disestablishment of
the South African Housing Fund was approved by the Minister and Mem-
bers of the Executive Council on 15 August 2003. The department is still
in the process of amending the Housing Act, 1997 (Act No. 107 of 1997)
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to make provision for the disestablishment of the South African Housing
Fund.

5.2 Trade and other receivables

As reported in the previous report, although the debt amounting to R 420
274 as reflected in note 3 to the financial statements has been fully pro-
vided for as a bad debt, insufficient steps have been taken to recover the
debt.

6. Appreciation

The assistance rendered by the staff of the Department of Housing during
the audit is sincerely appreciated.

FJ Joubert for Auditor-General
Pretoria
31 July 2006

AUDITOR-GENERAL
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Accounting policies

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

The financial statements are prepared on the liquidation basis as set out
below. Since the entity no longer conducts its function in terms of the Na-
tional Housing Act and is awaiting to be disestablished and the Housing
Act to be amended.

1.1 Financial Instruments

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank
balances, investments, receivables and creditors.

Measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.

Investments

Investments are stated at cost. Investments are with Corporation for Public
Deposits and does not earn any interest.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less provision for doubtful
debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at cost.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at cost.

1.2 Administration Costs

All administration costs are borne by Department of Housing.
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Employment and Vacancies by Critical Occupation at end of period

PART 5. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT




HR Oversight - April 2005 to March 2006 - Department of Housing
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HR Oversight - April 2005 to March 2006 - Department of Housing
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Reasons why staff are leaving the department




HR Oversight - April 2005 To March 2006 - Department of Housing
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The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose
salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded. The number of
employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees
are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded
could also be vacant.

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration levels
exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are
provided in each case.
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The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.




